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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the General Assembly of Aksa Enerji Uretim A.S.
A) Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
1) Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aksa Enerji Uretim A.S. (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards (“TFRS”).

2) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Independent Auditing (“SIA”) which is a part
of Turkish Auditing Standards accepted by regulations of the Capital Markets Board and published by the
Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Independent Auditors (“Code of Ethics”) published by the POA, together with the ethical requirements
included in the regulations of the Capital Markets Board and other regulations that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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3) Emphasis of Matter

Consolidated financial statements as of 31 December 2023 are subject to inflation adjustment in accordance
with TAS 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” within the scope of the
“Announcement on the Inflation Adjustment of Financial Statements of Companies Subject to Independent
Audit” dated 23 November 2023 published by the POA. Accordingly, we draw attention to Note 2 of the
consolidated financial statements, which describes the transition to inflation accounting. Qur opinion is not

modified in respect of this matter.

4) Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters are addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Impairment of Trade Receivables from Third
Parties

Group's trade receivables from third parties
amounts to TL 10,981,073,063 which comprise
20% of total assets as of 31 December 2023.

Provision for expected credit losses for trade
receivables from third parties is recognized for
as a result of assumptions made considering the
guarantees received from customers, customer’s
past payment performance and credibility with
maturity analysis of receivables balances and
legal disputes or lawsuits regarding receivables.

There are significant estimates and assumptions
used in the impairment tests of trade receivables
performed by the Group management. These
trade receivables from third parties are material
taken the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, thus the measurement of the expected
credit loss of trade receivables from third parties
in accordance with TFRS 9 (“Financial
Instruments”) is determined as a key audit
matter.

The related disclosure including the accounting
policies for the measurement of expected credit
losses of trade receivables from third parties are
included in Note 2 and Note 5.

The audit procedures applied including but not
limited to the following are:

o Understanding of the process of the Group’s
collection of trade receivables from third parties
and performing the design and implementation
testing of the relevant controls,

e Review of basis and arithmetical accuracy of the
model that is used for Group’s expected credit
losses calculation,

e Testing of the receivables used in the ageing data
used in the expected credit loss calculation
model by sampling method and comparing
collection turnover rate with previous year,

e Inquiring about the management of any disputes
or proceedings related to collections and
obtaining information about the proceedings
from legal counsel,

o Testing collections after reporting period by
sampling method,

e Testing of trade receivable balances from third
parties by sending external confirmations by
sampling method,

We have evaluated the adequacy of related
disclosures of trade receivables from third parties in
Note 2 and Note 5 in accordance with TFRS.
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4) Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

TAS 29 Financial Reporting Application in | During our audit, we performed the following audit
Hyperinflationary Economies procedures related to the application of TAS 29:

TAS 29, Financial Reporting in | - Testing whether the distinction between monetary
Hyperinflationary Economies (“TAS 29”) | and non-monetary items made by management is
standard has been applied in the Group's | made in accordance with TAS 29,

consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2023. - Testing the completeness and mathematical
accuracy of the lists subject to calculation on a
In accordance with TAS 29, the consolidated | sample basis,

financial statements and financial information of
the prior periods have been restated to reflect the | - Evaluating the calculation methods used by
changes in the purchasing power of the Turkish | management and checking their consistency in each
Lira and presented in terms of the purchasing | period,

power of the Turkish Lira at the reporting date.
The application of TAS 29 has a significant effect | - Testing the general price index rates used in the
on the consolidated financial statements, both on | calculations with the coefficients obtained from the
a widespread and consistent basis. Accordingly, | Consumer Price Index in Turkey published by the
we determined the application of TAS 29 as a key | Turkish Statistical Institute,

audit matter.
The adequacy of the explanations in the notes of the
The Group's accounting policies related to | consolidated financial statements regarding the
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary | application of TAS 29 has been checked in
Economies are disclosed in Note 2. accordance with TFRS.

5) Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Group management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with TFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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6) Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the regulations of the Capital Markets Board and SIA will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the regulations of the Capital Markets Board and SIA, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. (The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.)

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee ("DTTL"), its network of member firms, and their related
entities. DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) does not provide services to clients.
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6) Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

B) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102 (“TCC”),
the auditor’s report on the system and the committee of early detection of risk has been submitted to the
Board of Directors of the Company on 9 May 2024.

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, nothing has come to our attention that may
cause us to believe that the Group’s set of accounts and financial statements prepared for the period
1 January - 31 December 2023 does not comply with TCC and the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association in relation to financial reporting.

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors provided us all the
required information and documentation with respect to our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resuiting in this independent auditor’s report is Ali Cigekli.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECI MALI MUSAVIRLIK A S.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

Alf Cigekli
Partner

Istanbul, 9 May 2024
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AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

tAmormnts expressed Twrkish Liva ("TL ") in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 3] December 2023, unless otherwise stated.}

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial investments
Trade receivables

- Trade receivables from related parties

- Trade receivables from third pariies
Other receivables

- Other receivables from third parties
Derivative instruments

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Current {ax assets

Other current assets

Tatal current assets

Non-current assets

Financial investiments

Other receivables

- Other receivables from thivd parties
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

intangible assets

- Goodwill

- Other intangible assets
Prepaid expenses

Deferred tax asset

Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

1

Audited/ Audited/

Current period Prior period

Notes 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
6 794,882,334 1,544,463.434
7 876,290,463 504,878,236
13.530,095407 15.187,558,873

4 2,549.0022,344 4.011,449.673
$ 10.981.G73,063 11,176, 109, 2(H)
57,107,459 96,076,293

4 57,107,459 96,076,293
7 25,969,464 37,203,362
10 895,977,077 320,594,141
11 427,709,553 543,953,151
27 23,556,094 244,375,531
18 459,051,722 327,645,250
17,090,639,573 18.866,748,271

7 3.095470 3,095476
6,381,582 22,113,936

¢ 6.381.582 22,113,930
12 35,016.612,273 35,283.432,161
14 291,214,509 223,831,039
1.106,534,226 740,729,506

13 358313.003 -
13 748221163 740,729,506
1 1,863.,008,742 34,703,608
27 428.705,046 89,049,060
38,715,641,848 36,396,954,774

55.806,281,421 55,203,703,045




AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounis expressed Turkish Lira {"“TL "} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.)

LIABILITIES

Current liahilities

Shori-term borrowings

Short-term portion of long-term borrowings
Payables from short-term lease transactions

- Lease transactions from related parties

- Lease transactions from thivd parties
Short-term portions of long-term lease transactions
Trade payables

- Trade payables 1o related parties

- Trade payables to third parties

Payables related to employee benefits

Osher payables

- Other payables to related parties

- Other pavables to third parties

Current lax liabilities

Short-term provisions

- Shori-term provisions for emplovee benefits
- Other shori-term provisions

Other current Habilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current linbilities

Long-term borrowings

Long-tenn finance lease liabilities

Other payables

- Other payables to third parties

Long-term provisions

- Long-ferm provisions for emplavee benefits
- Other long-term provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Total nen-current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Aundited/ Aundited’

Current period Prior period

Notes 3! December 2023 31 December 2022
8 2,956,937,075 3,943,580,721
8 5,.214,092,682 3.856,471,038
8 3,685,382 4.507409
- 1,017,199

3,685,382 3400210

8 33268.579 10.674.336
3.340,362,189 3.511,099,702

4 272,492,454 251661357
3 3.067,869,733 3.259.438.145
17 68,212,179 38,748,211
712,243 460 779,420,337

4 12,534 36,248
9 712.230,926 779 384,089
27 1.362,996,954 943,653,773
40,089,738 39,400,464

17 11.594.817 0.745225
15 28,494,921 29.655.239
I8 34,245 495 28,097,449
13,766,133,733 13,155,653,440

8 5.077,650,835 6,237,181,973
8 154,458,261 131.761 849
994,893 867 965,000,807

14 V94 893,867 V63,090,807
141,288,705 143,901,074

17 34,636,448 38419832
15 106,632,257 113,481,242
27 1,036,2068.9623 2155904281
7,404,5006,631 9,633,839,984

21,170,640 364 22,789,493,424

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2



AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira (“TL"} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 20023, unless otherwise stated.)

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Paid-in capital

Share capital adjustment differences

Shares repurchased (-}

Accumulated other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified in profit or loss

- Property. plant and equipment revaluation increases
- Losses/(gains) on remeasurements of the defined
benefit plans

Accumulated other comprehensive income ‘expense
that will be reclasstfied in profit or foss

- Foreign currency translation differences

- Gain of hedging reserve

Restricted reserves appropriated from profit

Prior years' profit

Net profit for the period

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Aundited/ Aundited/

Current period Prior period

Notes 3t December 2023 31 December 2022
19 1.226,338,236 1.226,338,236
19 8.628,197,049 8,628,197.049
(42,934,122) -

19 3.327.431.402 3,207,688,007
19 3.327,531769 3.207,341 897
19 {99,.367) 346,110
19 {1.090,190,542) 1.056,130,543
336,407,232 3.078.0064,703

(1,426,597,774) 2,021,934, 160}

19 1,304,111,526 1,003,991,050
19 12,879,593,007 8,826,027 288
5.496,564.945 5,581,565,888

31,729,111,501 29,529.938,061

19 2.,906.529,556 2,884,271 560
34,635,641,0657 32.414,209,621

55,806,281,421 55,203,703,045

3




AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira (*'TL ") in terms of the purchasing power of the TL ar 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.)

Auwilited/ Audited/
Current period Prior period
1 January - 1 January -
Profit or less: Nuotes 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Revenue 20 35,172,257.432 87.101,671,476
Cost of sales (-) 26 (27.956,855,325) {76,510,664,856)
Gross profit 7,215,402,107 10,591,006,620
General administrative expenses {-) 24 (786,067.361) (568,837,532)
Sales, marketing and distribution expenses (-3 21 (23,444.369) (43,354,126)
Other operating income 22 475,239,889 744,899,354
Orther operating expenses (-) 22 (101,970.451) (286,342,547)
Operating profit 6,779,159.815 10,437,371,769
Empairment in accordance with TFRS 9 (425,498,342} (177,762,971
[ncome from investiment activities 23 77,098,380 49,251,012
Expenses from investment activities (-} 21 {118.449.663) {2,405.874,001)
Operating profit before finance expense 6,312,310,190 7,902,985,809
Finance income 25 4,212 069,965 2,801,087,.320
Finance expenses (-) 26 (2,530,345,563) {2,001,959,106)
Net financial income 1,681,724,402 709,128,214
Net monetary polition losses (852,529,743 (455,260,804)
Profit frem operations before tax 7,141,504,849 8,156,853,219
Operations tax expense (1,035,661,364) (1,880,224,033)
- Current tax expense 27 {2,465,607,213) (2,270.194.023)
- Deferred tax income 27 1,429,945 913 389,969,990
Profit from eperations for the period 6,105,843,549 6,276,029,186
Profit for the period attributable to:
- Non-controlling interests 609,278,604 695,063,298
- Equity holders of the parent 28 5.496,564,945 5,581,565,888
Total 6,105,843,549 6,276,629,186
Earnings per share
- Eamings per share attributable 10 equity holders
of the parent 28 4.438 4.55

The accompanying notes form an iategral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AKSA ENERJIURETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira (“TL") in terms of the purchasing power of the TL ar 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.)

Audited/ Audited/
Current period Prior period
1 January - I January -
Other comprehensive income; Naotes 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Profit for the period 6,505,843,549 6,276,629,186
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 427,992 420 3,024,952,553
Property, plant and equipment revaluation increases 12 428,244,900 3.024.793.225
Defined benefit plans remeasurement gains / (losses) 17 (252, 480) 159.328
Tax related to other comprehensive income not
to be reclassified to profit or loss (106,496,241) {766,596,104)
- Deferred fax expense 27 (106,496,241) (766,596,104)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or foss {2,708,530,610; (5,172,404,435)
Foreign currency translation differences {3,328,678,079) (4,575,447 888)
Gains / (losses) on cash flow hedging 620,142,069 {596,956.54)
Tax related to other comprehensive income to be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (24,805,683) 23,878,261
- Deferred tax income 27 (24,805.683) 23,878,261
Other comprehensive income (2,411,845,514) {2.890,169,725)
Total comprehensive income 3.693,998.035 3,386,459,461
Total comprehensive income attributable fo
Non-controlling interests 19 22,257,996 300,592,575
Equity holders of the parent 3.671,740,03% 3.025,866.886
Total 3,693,998,035 3,386,459,461

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5
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AKSA ENERJI URETIM A S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira (“TL ") in terms of the prorchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.)

Awdited Audited
| Jannary - T January -
Notes 31 December 2823 31 Becember 2022
A. Cash flows from operating activities 4,722,179.440 1,148,686.300
Profit for the period 6,105,843,549 6.276.629.186
Adjustments to reconcile net profit/loss to net cash 4,415,258,781 2,590,169,034
Adjustments related to depreciation and amortization expenses 24 1.346.946.911 2.395.250.005
Adiustimenss related to provision tor employee benefits 28.974.856 33214911
Adjustmenis related o interest expenses 26 1.502.466.933 1737886617
Adiusimenss relased to interest income 25 (1427491 .636) {842.761.119)
Adiusiments relased o expected provision losses 5.30 425,498,342 i77.762971
Adsustiments related to provisions for fegal cases 15 13481315 F7.008.421
Adjustiments refated to impairment in inventories [EH {9.557.916) £3.256.945
Adjustments related 1o tax expense 27 1.035,661.300 1.880.224.033
Adjustinents related to derivative transactions {income)‘expense {42.024.339) {[8.044,316)
Adjustments related to losses/(gain) on disposal of property. plant and equipment 23 31.548.685 -
Adjustinents related to impainient of propenty, plam and equipment 23 36.030.963 2.405.874.00%
Adjustments refated lo unrealized foreign currency translagion differences 3.682.339.766 2344212431
Monetary gain’ (oss) (2. 738,823,479 (7.461.769.468)
Adjustments related to other increase/(decrease) in working capital (5,166,551,704) {6,619,582,905)
Adjustments related to decreases (increases} in inventories (591,086,630} 515.636.948
Increase in trade receivables fron third parties 14.478.693,226} (3.748,208.945)
Inceease in trade receivables from related parties (314,447,074) (2.749.067.192)
Decrease/{increase) in other operating receivables from related parties - 46,587.119
Increase in other operating receivables from third parties B.241 385 (28.632.000)
Increase in trade pavables to thind parties 1.089.695.222 26974626
Increase in other operating payvables to third panties 648,391 470 530.254.082
increase in trade payvables to related parties 119.757.395 104.028.232
Decrease in other payables related to operations (2,465) -
Increase in other labilities related to operations 1,420,029,358) {1,704.690.336}
Increase in prepaid expenses 141,505,208 (134645421
Decrease/(increase) in other assets related 1o operations 7 {569.876.53%) 472179588
Cash flows generated from operations 3,354.543.546 2.247,185,318
Tax payments §618,545.804) {1,095.91G.090)
Payments related to provisions for employee benefits (13,2831.688) {2.558.822)
Payments for other provisions i3 (616.614) -
B. Cash flows used in investing activitics £3,650,809,468) {3,355,458,505)
Cash inflows from sale of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets 76.471.207 112.348
Cash outflows from purchases of property, plant and equipment 2 {1.833.683.704) 13.207.629.822)
Cash outfiows from purchases of intangible assets 13 (64.441,777) (47,941,000
(her cash advances and funds given (1828395130 -
C. Cash flows used in financing activities (1,217,747,760) 2,893,763,887
Cash inflows from loans k¥ 8.837.022,133 9.225.859.615
Cash outflows from loans 12 (7. 186.696,498} 4.238.165.271)
Cash outflows related to debt payments arising from lease agreements 12 (138,367.901) {85.511.672)
Cash outflows resuiting from the business receiving #ls own paymenis (42.934.122) -
Ingerest paid (1.464.600.52%) {1.350.991 814
Tnierest received 23 1027491636 R42.761.119
Dividend payments 19 (1.429.632.477) 11,360.167.438)
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents before
{oreign currency translation differences (A+B+C) (145,577,788} 686,991,682
D. inflation impact on cash and cash equivalents (607,118,387 {555,047,151)
E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,554,361,041 £.423.016,510
Cash and cash equivatents at the end of the year (A+B+C+DHE) 861,664,866 £,554,361,041

On 31 December 2023, the Group calculated expected eredit Toss amounting to TL 6,782,532 on cash and cash equivalents within the scope of TFRS ¢ {31 December
2022: TL 9.899,782).

The accompanying notes forns an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounis expressed Turkish Lira ("TL"} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.)

Organization and operations of the Group

Aksa Enerji Uretim A.S, (“Aksa Enerji” or “the Company™) was established on 12 March 1997 to engage in
constructing, lending and operating of electricity power plant, production and sale of electricity and/or energy

production capacity to the customers.

The Company has been registered in Istanbul Trade Registry Office and the shares of the Company have been
traded in the Borsa Istanbul A.S. ("BIST™) on 21 May 2010 under the name “AKSEN". As of 31 December 2023,
the Company's share in actual circulation is 20.58% (31 December 2022: 20.58%).

The main sharcholder of the Company is Kazanc: Holding A.§. (“Kazanci Holding™). The Company’s registered
office address is Rizgarhibahge Mahallesi, Ozalp Cikmazi, No:10, Kavacik-Beykoz, Istanbul / Turkey.

Aksa Enerji and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “the Group” in this report. As of 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022, the details of the subsidiaries included in the consolidation are as follows:

Group's Group's

effective effective

share ratio share ratio

{¥o) (%)

Principal Place of 31 December 31 December

Name of subsidiary - Foreign Branch activity aperation 2023 2022
Aksa Yenilencbilir Enerji Uretim A S. (“Aksa Yenilenebilir™)  Electricity trade Turkey 106.00 160.00
Aksa Energy Company Ghana Limited (“Aksa Enegji Gana™y  Electricity production  Ghana 75.00 75.00
Aksa Enerji Uretim A.$.-Y.S. (“Aksa Enerji - Y.5.") Electricity production  TRNC 106.00 100.00
Aksa Ghana B.V. Holding company Netherlands 106.00 160.00
Aksa Uzbekisian {nvestment B.V. Holding company Netherlands 106.00 100.00
Aksa Uzbekistan Bukhara B.V. Holding company Netherlands 100.00 100.00
Aksa Global Investment BV, ("Aksa Global B.V.") Holding company Netherlands 1006.00 100.00
Aksa Goyniik Enerji Uretim A.S. (“Aksa Goynilk Enerji™) Electricity production Turkey 59.99 99.99
Aksa Madagascar B.V. Holding company Netherlands 100.00 100.60
Aksa Madagascar SAU Electricity production  Madagascar 100.00 100.60
Aksa Mali S.A. Electricity production  Mali 10000 H0.60
Aksaf Power Ltd. (" Aksaf Power™) Electricity production  Mawitius 100.00 100.060
{dil ki Enerji Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S, (“1dil Iki Enerii™) Electricity production  Furkey 99.09 99.99
Overseas Power Lid. ("Overseas Power™) Supply trade Mauritius 100.00 100.09
Rasa Enerji Uretim A.S. ("Rasa Enerji™) Electricity production  Turkey 99.99 99.99
Aksa Energy Company Congo (" Aksa Enerji Kongo) Electricity production  Congo 160.00 100.00
Aksa Energy Cameroon PLC (~Aksa Eneri Kamerun™} (%) Electricity production  Cameroon 75.00 75.00
Aksa Energy Tashkent FE LLC Electricity production  Uzbekistan 160.00 100,00
Aksa Energy Bukhara FE LLC Electricity production  Uzbekistan 160.00 100,00
Aksa Enerji Uretim A S. Kazakistan Branch (*) Electricity production  Kazakhstan 100.00 100.00
Aksa Kyzylorda Investment BV, Holding company Netherlands 130.00 100.00
Aksa Energy Kyzviorda LLP (%) Electricity production  Kazakhstan 160.00 100.00
Aksa Taboth PP Electricity production  Ivory Coast 80.00 80.00
Aksa Talimarjan B.V. Holding company Netherlands 160.00 -
Aksa Renewable Energy B.V. Holding company Netherlands 160.60 -
Aksa Enegi Talimarjan FE LLC (%) Electricity production  Elzbekistan 160.00 -
Ndar Energies SA (*) Electricity production  Senegal 85.00 -
Aksa-Ndar Holding SA Holding company Senegal 60.60 -

{*) The relevant companies are m the invesbnent period; as of 31 Becember 2023, clectricity generation has not started.

As of 31 December 2023, the number of employees of the Group is 1,268 (31 December 2022: 1,234),



AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira ("TL"} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated. }

Organization and eperations of the Group (continued)

Aksa Yenilenebilir Enerji Uretim A.S. (“Aksa Yenilenebilir”} :

Aksa Yenilenebilir Enerji Uretim A.S. was founded on 8 July 2015 by the Aksa Enerji with an ownership percent
of 100.00% for the purpose of selling the electricity produced by the Group companies. As of 6 March 2023, the
name has been changed to Aksa Yenilenebilir Enerji Uretim A.S.

Aksa Energy Ghana:

Aksa Energy Ghana was founded on 13 July 2015 by the Aksa Enexji in accordance with the electricity production
and sale agreement signed with the Government of Ghana Republic. As of the reporting date, unit of power plant
with a capacity 192.5 MW of the fuel oil power plant with a total 370 MW capacity was tempaorarily approved
and it started its operations on 10 April 2017. The installed power of the power plant has increased from 192.5
MW to 35 MW with a reserve capacity of total 280 MW as of 1 August 2017, As of 19 November 2018, the
installed capacity of Ghana Fuel Gil Power Plant has increased from 280 MW to 370 MW and thus the guaranteed
capacity has been increased from 223.5 MW to 332 MW. Aksa Energy Ghana, sells all of the electricity generated
during the agreement to the Ghana Electricity Authority (ECG) on a tariff basis determined in terms of US Dollars
(“USD™), As of 3 October 2022, the electricity sales contract was extended for 15 years,

Aksa Enerji — Cyprus (“Aksa Enerji Y.5.”)

On 10 June 2009, Aksa Enerji- Y.$. made an electricity sale agreement with Electricity Distribution Company of
Turkish Nerthern Cyprus (“KIB-TEK™) by providing service through lending the power plant constituting of diesel
generator groups estabiished in Katecik-TRNC. The contract period was extended by Aksa Enerji- Y.S. with a
lease and operation agreement signed with KIBTEK to 15+3 years until 2027 on 1 April 2009, and extended to 15
years until 2038 on 19 July 2023. Kibris Tiirk Elektrik Kurumu commits to purchase all of the electricity produced
during the contract period on a tariff basis determined in terms of US Dollars.

[n accordance with the capacity increase investiments of Kalecik Power Plant in TRNC, the installed capacity has
been increased by the instalinent of two units with the same engine specifications from the power plants whose
licenses were cancelled. The installed capacity of our TRCN Kalecik Power Plant has increased to 153 MW.

Aksa Ghana B.V.:

On 24 November 2016, Aksa Ghana B.V, was established in Holland as a holding Company of Aksa Energy
Ghana.

Aksa Uzbekistan Investment B.V,:

Aksa Indonesia BV company changed its title in 2020 and continues its activities as Aksa Uzbekistan Investment
BV. Aksa Uzbekistan Investinent B.V. is the partner of Aksa Energy Tashkent LLC Company.,

Aksa Uzbekistan Bukhara B.V.:
Aksa Uzbekistan Bukhara B.V. is the partner of Aksa Energy Bukhara FE LLC Company.

Aksa Global Investment B.V.:

On 24 November 2016, Aksa Giobal Investment was established in Holland to coordinate the foreign investments
as a holding Company. Aksa Ghana B.V., Aksa Madagascar B.V., Aksa Uzbekistan Investment B.V., Aksa
Uzbekistan Bukhara B.V., Aksa Kyzlorda Investment B.V., Aksa Taboth IPP, Aksa Energy Company Cameroon
PLC, Aksa Talimarjan B.V., Aksa Renewable Energy B.V. and Aksa NDAR Holding S.A. are affiliated companies
of Aksa Global B.V.

Alksa Goyniik Enerji:

Aksa Goyniik Enerji has a royalty agreement with General Directorate of Turkish Coal for the use of coal in Bolu-
Goyniik reservoir and Aksa Enerji has a licence for the utilisation of this coal in its power plant with 270 MW
capacity.

On 28 October 2011, Aksa Enerji acquired 99.99% of all shares of Aksa Goynilk Enerji from Kazanci Holding,
the ultimate parent company. The main operations of Aksa Gdyniik Enerji are constructing, lending and operating
of electricity power plant, production and sale of electricity and all kind of exploration and production of natural
gas and petroleum resources and mining. First unit of the power plant with 135 MW has started its operations as
of 15 July 2015 and second unit of the power plant with 135 MW has started its operations as of 29 January 2016,



AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounis expressed Turkish Lira (“TL"} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.)

Organization and operations of the Group (continued)

Aksa Madagascar B.V:

On 19 October 2016, Aksa Madagascar B.V. was established as a holding company of Aksaf Power
Aksa Mali 5.A.:

On 6 February 2017, Aksa Mali SA was established for operating and maintenance coordination of Mali plant. On 4
August 2017, 10 MW powered portion from the first phase has been put in use. On 28 September 2017, the remaining
30 MW portion of 40 MW installed powered plant in total has been put in use. As of 27 January 2021, in accordance
with the agreement signed between EDM and Aksa Enerji Uretim A_S, and its 100% subsidiary Aksa Mali SA, on top
of existing power plant, Aksa Enerji Uretim A.S. will initiate a power plant with an installed capacity of 20 MW. Thus,
the installed power of the Financial Power Plant increased from 40 MW to 60 MW. The guaranteed capacity cost
increased from 30 MW to 50 MW, Power generated by 50 MW installed capacity will also be purchased by EDM for 3
years based on a guaranteed EUR denominated price.

Aksaf Power:

Aksa Enerji established Aksaf Power with participation by Aksa Enerji and a local partner with an ownership interest of
58.35% and 41.65%, respectively, in Mauritius for the purpose of constructing a Heavy Fuel Oil (“HFQ") power plant
with a capacity of 120 MW in Republic of Madagascar and guarantee sale of the electricity produced for 20 years. Aksaf
Power started the construction of power plant upon receipt of the advances and guarantees in accordance with the
agreement with Jiro Sy Rano Malagasy (“Jirama™), a public company in Republic of Madagascar providing water and
electricity services in this country. On 22 October 2019, Aksa Energy acquired the entire company by purchasing 41.65%
of the shares belonging to the local partner,

The first engines of the power plant with an installed power of 23 MW, whose construction started in the last quarter of
2016, were put in use on 10 July 2017, earlier than the planned period and on 4 August 2017, installed pewer of power
ptant has increased to 50 MW, Established power of the plant is 66 MW. In the guaranteed electricity sales agreement,
the tarift was determined in USD, and the field, fuel supply, all licenses and permissions related to the project were
provided by Jirama.

Madagascar SAU:

Madagascar SAU was established on 6 April 2018 in Antananarivo/Madagascar, mainly to carry out business activities
and groups related to Aksaf Power's activities.

idil iki Enerji:

In 2001, idil Iki Enetji was acquired by Koni insaat Sanayi A.S. (“Koni insaat™, a related party, from Rilkent Group.
1dil Iki Enerji has a fuel oil fired power plant located in Sinak with a capacity of 24 MW. The power plant wais es.tabi.ished
and started electricity production in 2001. On 3 March 2010, Aksa Enetji acquired 99.99% of all shares of kil 1ki Ingaat
from Koni Ingaat. License of power plant has been cancelled on 7 February 2017 by the Company.

Rasa Enerji:

Rasa Enerji was established in 2000 for production and distribution of electricity. Rasa Enerji’s 99.99% shares have been
acquired by Aksa Enerji on 5 June 2010 from Koni insaat, one of the refated parties of the Group. Rasa Enerji started to
generate electricity in August 201 [ with an installed capacity of 129 MW and the investment to transform the plant into
a combined cycle engine driven technology was completed on 8 October 2012, As of 18 November 2015, the installed
capacity of Sanhurfa Natural Gas Power Plant is has been increased by 18 MW to 147 MW,

Aksa Enerji Kongo:

It was established in Republic of Congo in 2019 to develop projects. On 2 December 2022, the completed 50 MW section
of the power plant started operation,

Aksa Energy Company Camercon Plc:
1t was established in Cameroon in 2019 to develop projects.

Overseas Power:

Overseas Power was established on 18 November 2016 in Mauritius in order to carry out the procurement of raw
materials and goods mainly related to the activities of Aksaf Power.
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AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira ("TL”) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.

Organization and operations of the Group (continued)
Aksa Energy Tashkent FE L1.C:

Aksa Energy has established a company named Aksa Energy Tashkent LLC located in Uzbekistan which is 100% owned
by Aksa Energy, in order to establish two natural gas combined cycle power plant with an installed capacity of 470 MW
respectively 240 and 230 in Uzbekistan and sale of the energy generated in plant based on a guaranteed capacity payment
for a duration of 25 years. As of 14 January 2022, commercial production started gradually st the Tashkent A power
plant with an installed power of 240 MW, As of 30 March 2022, test production started at the Tashkent B power plant
with an installed power of 230 MW,

Aksa Energy Bukhara FE LLC:

Aksa Energy has established a company named Aksa Energy Bukhara FE LLC located in Uzbekistan which is 100%
owned by Aksa Energy, in order to establish a natural gas combined cycle power plant in Uzbekistan and sale of the
energy generated in the plant based on a guaranteed capacity payment tor a duration of 25 years. As of 14 January 2022,
commmercial production started gradually at the Bukhara power plant with an installed power of 270 MW.

Aksa Enerji Talimarjan FC

Aksa Enerji, established a company called Aksa Enerji Talimarjan FC, located in Uzbekistan, 100% owned by Aksa
Energy in order to establish a natural gas combined cycle power plant with an installed capacity of 430 MW in
Talimarjan, Uzbekistan, and to make guaranteed sales of the electricity produced for 25 years.

Aksa Enerji Uretim A.S. Branch of the Republic of Kazakhstan in Almaty:

Aksa Enerji Uretim A.§. Kazakhstan Branch was established to develop projects.
Aksa Kyzylorda Investment B.V.

Kyzylorda Investinent B.V is the partner of Aksa Energy Kyzylorda LLP Company.
Aksa Energy Kyzylorda LLP

Aksa Enerji, in order to establish a natural gas combined cycle power plant with an installed capacity of 240 MW in
Kizilorda, Kazakhstan and to sell the electricity produced for a period of 15 years, established a company called Aksa
Energy Kyzylorda LLP located in Kazakhstan, 100% owned by Aksa Enerji.

Aksa Taboth IPP

Aksa Taboth [PP was established in Ivory Coast for project development.
Aksa Talimarjan B.V.

Aksa Talimarian B.V. is the partner of Aksa Enerji Talimarjan FC.

Aksa Renewable Energy B.V.
It was established as a holding company %100 owned by Aksa Global Investments B.V.

Ndar Energies SA

NDAR Energies SA, a subsidiary of Aksa Global Investiments B.V., one of the group companies of Aksa Enerji Uretim
A.S., Is a company operating in Senegal, 85% of which is owned by Aksa Ndar Holding SA and 15% of which is owned
by the local pariner in order to establish a natural gas combined cycle power plant with an installed capacity of 255 MW
in the City of Saint Louis, Senegal, and to sell the electricity generated in Euro index for 25 years.

Aksa-Ndar Holding SA

Aksa-Ndar Holding SA was established as a holding company in Senegal, 60% of which belongs to Aksa Global
Investment B.V., one of the group companies of Aksa Enerji Uretim A.S.
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AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira (“TL"} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated)

Organization and operations of the Group (continued)

As of 31 December 2023, electricity production licenses held by the Group are as follows:

The installed

Licence Licence capacity
Owner Region/country Typeof facility  Date of licence Duration {MWh)
Aksa Enerfi KKTC Fuel oil 19 July 2023 15 years 153
Aksa Enerpi Antalya Natural gas 13 November 2007 30 years 900
Aksa Goynik Enerji Bolu Thermal 25 June 2008 30 years 270
Aksa Enerji Gana Ghana Dual Fuel 1 November 2017 15 years 370
Aksa Enerji Congo Congo Natural gas 2 December 2022 30 years 25
Aksa Mali S.A Mali Fuel Oil 28 September 2017 3+3 years 60
Aksafl Power Madagascar Fuel Oil 5 September 2017 20 years 60
Rasa Enerji Sanhurfa Natural gas [2 May 2011 49 years 147
Aksa Energy Bukhara Bukhara Natural gas 20 January 2021 25 years 270
Aksa Energy Tashkent Tashkent Natural gas 24 Qctober 2020 25 years 470
Total 2,731
The capacity

Name of Typeof License Type of of the plant

License owner Location facility  facility Date of license  Duration license (MWe)
Saciete Jiro Sy Rano Madagascar CTA-2 Fuel o1l 8 January 2019 5§ years Maintenance 24

Malagasy (Jirama) & Operating
Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Basis of Preparation

Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance to TFRS

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Capital Markets
Board {“CMB™) “Communigué on Principles Regarding Financial Reporting in the Capital Market” No:14.1 published
in the Official Gazette No: 28676 of 13 June 2013 and pursuant to Article 5 of the Communiqué, the financial statements
are based on Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS") and exhibits and interpretations associated which were
enacted by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA™).

In addition, the financial statements are presented in accordance with the formats determined in the “Announcement on
TFRS Taxonomy” published by the POA on 4 October 2022 and the Financial Statement Examples and User Guide
published by the CMB.

The censolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for revaluation of certain
property, plant and equipment and financial instruments, Historical cost {s generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of 31 December 2023 were approved by the Company's Board of
Directors on 9 May 2024. The Company's General Assembly and the relevant regulatory bodies have the right to request
the change of the consolidated financial statements after the publication.

Restatement of Financial Statements During Periods of High Inflation

The financial statements and related figures for previous periods have been restated for changes in the general purchasing
power of the functional currency and, consequently, the financial statements and related figures for previous periods are
expressed in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period in accordance with TAS 29 “Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies.”



b)

AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts expressed Turkish Lira ("' TL") in terms of the purchasing power of the TL ar 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Restatement of Financial Statements During Perieds of High Inflation (continued}

TAS 29 applies to the financial statements, including the consolidated financial statements, of each entity whose
functional currency is the cummency of a hyperinflationary economy. If an economy is subject to hyperinflation, TAS 29
requires an entity whose functional currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy te present its financial
statements in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period.

As at the reporting date, entities operating in Turkiyve are required to apply TAS 29 "Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies” for the reporting periods ending on or after 31 January 2024, as the cumulative change in
the general purchasing power of the fast three years based on the Consumer Price Index (“CP1™) is more than 100%.

POA made a announcement on 23 November 2023 regarding the scope and application of TAS 29. It stated that the
financial statements of the entities applying Turkish Financial Reporting Standards for the annual reporting period ending
on or after 31 December 2023 should be presented in accordance with the related accounting principles in TAS 29,
adjusted for the effects of inflation.

in accordance with the CMB's decision dated 28 December 2023 and numbered 81/1820, issuers and capital market
institutions subject to financial reporting regulations applying Turkish Accounting/Financial Reporting Standards are
required to apply inflation accounting by applying the provisions of TAS 29 to their annual financial statements for the
accounting periods ending on 31 December 2023,

In this framework, while preparing the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2023 inflation adjustment
has been made in accordance with TAS 29,

The table betow shows the inflation rates for the relevant years calculated by taking into account the Consumer Price
Indices published by the Turkish Statistical Institute (TURKSTAT):

Three-year cumulative
Date Index Adjustment coefficient inflation rates
31 December 2023 1,859.38 1.00000 268%
31 December 2022 1,128.45 1.64773 156%
31 December 2021 686.95 2.70672 74%

The main lines of TAS 29 indexation transactions are as follows:

* As of the balance sheet date, all items other than those stated in terms of current purchasing power are restated by using
the relevant price index coefficients. Prior year amounts are also restated in the same way.

» Monetary assets and liabilities are expressed in terms ot the purchasing power at the balance sheet date and are therefore
not subject to restatement. Monetary items are cash and items to be received or paid in cash.

* Fixed assets, subsidiaries and similar assets are indexed to their acquisition values, which do not exceed their market
values. Depreciation has been adjusted in a similar manner. Amounts included in shareholders' equity have been restated
by applying general price indices for the periods in which they were contributed to or arose within the company.

* All items in the income statement, except for the effects of non-monetary items in the balance sheet on the income
statemnent, have been restated by applying the multiples calculated over the periods when the income and expense
accounts were initially recognised in the financial statements,

+ The gain or loss arising on the net monetary position as a result of general inflation is the difference between the
adjustinents to non-monetary assets, equity items and income statement accounts. This gain or loss on the net monetary
position is included in net profit.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
Basis of Preparation (continued)

Restatement of Financial Statements During Periods of High Inflation fcontitued)
The impact of the application of TAS 29 Inflation Accounting is summarised below:

Restatement of the Statement of Financial Position

Amounts in the staternent of financial position that are not expressed in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of
the reporting period are restated. Accordingly, monetary items are not restated because they are expressed in the currency
of the reporting period. Non-monetary items are required to be restated unless they are expressed in terms of the currency
in effect at the end of the reporting period.

The gain or loss on the net monetary position arising on restatement of non-monetary items is recognized in profit or loss
and presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income,

Restatement of the Statement of Profit or Loss

All items in the statement of profit or loss are expressed in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting
petiod. Therefore, all amounts have been restated by applying changes in the monthly general price index.

Cost of inventories sold has been restated using the restated inventory balance.

Depreciation and amortisation expenses have been restated using the restated balances of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, investment property and right-of-use assets.

Restaterent of Statement of Cash Flows

All items in the statement of cash flows are expressed in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting
period.

Consolidated financial statements

The financial statements of a subsidiary whose functional currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy are
restated by applying the general price index before they are included in the consolidated financial statements prepared
by the parent company.

The subsidiaries of the Group whose functional currency is other than the Turkish Lira have been translated into
purchasing power as of 31 December 2023, according to the following principles.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, have been translated into Turkish Lira using
the closing exchange rate on 31 December 2023, The consolidated income statement for the period from 1 January 2023
- 31 December 2023, has been translated into Turkish Lira using the three-month average exchange rates and indexed to
the purchasing power as of 31 December 2023. Similarly, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022, have been translated into Turkish Lira using the closing exchange rate on 31 December 2022, and
indexed to the purchasing power as of 31 December 2023, The income statement for the period from 1 January 2022 -
31 December 2022, has been translated into Turkish Lira using the three-month average exchange rates and indexed to
the purchasing power as of 31 December 2023,

Comparative figures

Relevant figures for the previous reporting period are restated by applying the general price index so that the comparative
financial statements are presented in the measuring unit applicable at the end of the reporting period. Information
disclosed for prior periods is also expressed in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments which arc measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given for goods and services.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in Note 2.3.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
Basis of Preparation (continued)
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of each business of the Group are presented in the currency of the main economic environment
in which they operate {the functional currency). The financial position and operating resuits of each business are
expressed in TL, which is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

The functional currencies of the Group companies are summarized in the table below.

Company Functional currency
Aksa Enerji- Y.8. UsSD
Aksa Goynilk Enerji TL
idil iki Enerji TL
Rasa Enerji TL
Aksa Yenilenebitir Enerji Uretim A.S. TL
Aksa Enerji Gana UsD
Aksa Gana B.V. USD
Aksa Global B.V. Usp
Aksa Uzbekistan Investment B.V. USDh
Aksa Uzbekistan Bukhara B.V. UsD
Aksa Madagascar B.V. Uusp
Aksa Mali 5.A. EUR
Alksaf Power Uusp
Overseas Power UsDh
Aksa Enerji Tashkent Usp
Aksa Bukhara USh
Aksa Enerji Kongo UusD
Aksa Madagaskar SAU uUspb
Aksa Energy Kamerun UsD
Aksa Enerji Uretim A S. Kazakistan Branch Ush
Aksa Kyzylorda Investment B.V. UsD
Aksa Energy Kyzylorda LLP UsD
Aksa Taboth IPP EUR
Aksa Tatimarjan B.V. UsD
Aksa Renewable Energy B.V. UsDh
Aksa Enerji Talimarjan FC USD
Ndar Energies SA EUR
Aksa-Ndar Holding SA EUR

Functional currencies are used to a significant extent in, or have a significant impact on the operations of the related
Group entities and reflect the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to these entities.
All currencies other than the currencies selected for measuring items in the consolidated financial statements are treated
as foreign currencies. Accordingly, transactions and balances not already measured in the functional currencies have been
re-measured to the related functional currencies.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of conselidation

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through it power over the entity. In
assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently are exercisable.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

s the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

¢ the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus

& if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing eguity interest in the acquiree;
less

+ the net recognised amount {generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The consideration
transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships, Such amounts generally are
recognised in profit or loss,

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls a business when exposure, or rights, to variable
returns due to its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of
the investor's returns. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group,

The Group measures any non-controlling interests in the acquiree at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, which are generally at fair value.

Changes in the Group’s interest in & subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on a proportionate amount
of the pet assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwiil and no gain or loss is recognised in profit or Joss.

Loss of controf

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and [iabilities of the subsidiary, and any NCI
and other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any resulting gain or loss arising on the loss of control is
recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at
the date when control is lost.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment. Carrying value of shares owned by the Group and dividends arising from these shares has been eliminated
in equity and profit or loss accounts.

Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are retranslated to the functional cuirency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on
monetary items is the difference between the amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year,
adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the year.

Neon-monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at tair value are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in a
foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except for differences
arising hedge instruments recognized in other comprehensive income.

The EUR/TL, USD/TL, GHS/USD and TL/USD as of the end of the reporting periods are as foliows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

EUR/TL 32.5739 19.9349
Usp/TL 29.4382 18.6983
GHS /USD [1.8741 8.5717
TL/USD 0.0340 0.0535

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustnents arising on acquisition, are
translated to TL at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to
TL at average exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign currency
translation difference in equity. However, if the foreign operation is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, then the relevant
proportion of the translation difterence is allocated to the non-controlling interests.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Foreign currency (continued)
Foreign operations (continued)

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while
retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reatiributed to non-controlling interests. When the
Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while
retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit
or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operations is neither planned nor likely
in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form
part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented within
equity in the foreign currency translation difference,

New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards

a)  Amendments that are mandatorily effective from 2023

Amendments to TAS | Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to TAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to TAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to TAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to TAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments require that an entity discloses its material accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting
policies.

Amendments to TAS | are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted.

Amendments to TAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

With this amendment, the definition of “a change in accounting estimates™ has been replaced with the definition of “an
accounting estimate”, sample and explanatory paragraphs regarding estimates have been added, and the differences
between application of an estimate prospectively and correction of errors retrospectively have been clarified.

Amendments to TAS 8 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted.

Amendments to TAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments clarify that the initial recognition exemption does not apply to transactions in which equal amounts of
deductible and taxable temporary differences arise on initial recognition.

Amendments to TAS 12 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted.
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Basis of preparation ef the financial statements (continued)

New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

a)  Amendments that are mandatorily effective from 2023 (continied)

Amendments to TAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments provide a temporary exception to the requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related
to pillar two income taxes. Amendments to TAS 12 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after |
January 2023.

by New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not yet adopted the following standards and amendments and interpretations to the existing standards:

TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to TFRS 17 Initial Application of TFRS 17 and TFRS 9 — Comparative
Information (Amendment to TFRS 17)

Amendments to TAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

Amendments to TFRS 16 Lease Liabiflity in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to TAS | Nen-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to TAS 7 and TFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

TSRS § General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-
related Financial Information

TSRS 2 Climate-related Disclosures

TERS 17 Insurance Contracts

TFRS 17 reguires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment value and provides a more uniform
measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the goal
of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. TFRS 17 has been deferred for insurance, reinsurance
and pension companies for a further year and will replace TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts on 1 January 2025,

Amendments to TFRS 17 Insurance Comtracts and Initial Application of TFRS 17 and TFRS 9 —- Comparative
Information

Amendments have been made in TFRS 17 in order to reduce the implementation costs, to explain the results and to
facilitate the initial application.

The amendment pennits entities that first apply TFRS 17 and TFRS 9 at the same time to present comparative information
about a financial asset as it the classification and measurement requirements of TFRS 9 had been applied to that financial
asset before,

Amendments are effective with the first application of TFRS 17,

Amendments te TAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Curvent or Non-Current

The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in
the statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as

current (due or potentiaily due to be settled within one year) or non-current,

Amendments to TAS 1 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and earlier
application is permitted
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

b) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not vet effective (continued}

Amendments to TFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to TFRS 16 clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy
the requirements in TFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale.

Amendments are effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,
Amendments to TAS { Non-carrent Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to TAS 1 clarify how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting
period affect the classification of a liability.

Amendments are effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2024,

The Group evaluates the effects of these standards, amendments and improvements on the conselidated financial
statements.

Amendments to TAS 7 and TFRS 7 Supplier Finance Avrangements

The amendments add disclosure requirements, and ‘signposts’ within existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities
to provide qualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangements. Amendments are effective from
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,

TSRS 1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-velated Financial Information

TSRS 1 sets out overall requirements for sustainability-related financial disclosures with the objective to require an entity
to disclose information about its sustainability-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of general
purpose financial reports in making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity. The application of this standard
is mandatory for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2024 for the entities that meet the criteria
specified in POA's announcement dated 5 January 2024 and numbered 2024-5 and for banks regardless of the criteria,
Other entities may voluntarily report in accordance with TSRS.

TSRS 2 Climate-related Disclosures

TSRS 2 sets out the requirements for identifying, measuring and disclosing information about climate-related risks and
opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reports in making decisions relating to providing
resources to the entity. The application of this standard is mandatory for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024 for the entities that meet the criteria specified in POA's announcement dated 5 January 2024 and numbered
2024-5 and for banks regardless of the criteria. Other entities may voluntarily report in accordance with TSRS,

The Group evaluates the effects of these standards, amendments and improvements on the condensed consolidated
financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

Revenue

The Group includes the revenue generated by the sale of the electricity produced by the official authorities and in
the market, in the financial statements. An asset is transferred when or when control of an asset is transferred to
the customer,

The Group recognizes revenue in its consolidated financial statentents within the scope of 5-step model given
below:

{a) Identify the contract(s) with a customer

{b) Identify the performance obligations in the contract

(c) Determine the transaction price

{d} Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
(e) Recognition of revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied.

When a contract is only legally enforceable, collectible, rights and payment terms for goods and services are
identifiable, the contract is considered to be in accordance with TFRS 15 if the terms of the contract have been
met, the contract has been approved by the parties and the parties have fulfilied all the obligations under which
they are committed.

At the beginning of the contract, the Group evaluates the goods or services committed on the contract with the
customer and defines each commitment given to be transferred to the customer as a performance obligation. The
Group also determines, at the inception of the contract, whether it has fulfilled each performance obligation over
time or at a particular moment in time.

TEIAS sales income includes sales arising from the settlement system due to all sales transactions made by the
market participant in the free market settled by the free market MFSC (Market Financial Settlement Center) and
due to the existence of a free market,

Bilateral Agreements Electricity Sales, physical or service sales to both wholesale companies or private generation
companies. Primary Frequency Control (PFK) includes the sale of services related to the transfer of this obligation
by the power plants that have obligations in the relevant legislation.

Energy Imbalance, When group companies combine and form a balancing group according to the relevant
legislation, all imbalance receivables and debts are reconciled within the body of the party responsible for the
balance. The balance responsible party distributes these amounts to the balancing group members. Group
imbalance items include positive imbalance receivables, negative imbalance debit and zero balance debit/credit
amounts.

Financial instruments
i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Group’s trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. Al other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

2%
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

i1} Classitication and subsequent measurement

According to TFRS 9, when a financial asset is recognized for the first time; it is classified as measured at
amortized cost; measured at fair value through other comprehensive income — investments in debt instruments;
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income — investments in equity instruments or measured at
fair value through profit or loss,

Financiaf assets are not reclassified subseguent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of
the first reperting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is ineasured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

+ it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

« its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash tlows that are solely payments of principal and
mterest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOC! as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCH as at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

+ the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

» the purpose of the business model may be to manage daily liquidity needs, to maintain a certain interest yield,
or to match the maturity of financial assets with the maturity of the debts funding those assets,

* the business model and how the performance of financial assets held under the business model is reported to
Group management;

o the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;
s the frequency, value, timing and cause of sales made in previous periods and future sales prospects.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that are not eligible for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's continuing recognition of its assets in its financial statements.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continuwed)

i) Classification and subsequent measurement {confinued)

Financial assets- Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:

Principal is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. Interest is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular pericd of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs),
as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash tlows are “solely payments of principai and interest”, the Group considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers:

« contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

+ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;

s prepayment and extension features; and

e terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract.

Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a
feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount
plus accrued {but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for
early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is
insigniticant at initial recognition.

Since the principal is the present value of expected cash flows, trade receivables and other receivabies meet the
“solely payments of principal and interest criteria”. 1t is managed in accordance with the business model based on
collection of these receivables.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements {continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

i1} Classification and subsequent measurement {continued)

The following accounting policies apply to subsequent measurement of financial assets.

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Equity instruments at FVQCI These assets are measured at fair value in subsequent periods. Dividends
are recognized in profit or loss unless it is expressly intended to recover
part of the investment cost. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income and cannot be reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
amortized cost effective interest method.

The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recogaition is
recognized in profit or loss,

Financial liabilifies

Financial liabilitics are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognized in profit or loss. The Group does not have any financial labilities at FVTPL except for derivatives
and issued debt instruments.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is also recognized in profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognized on the transaction date when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual terms of the financial instrument,

Non-derivative financial liabilities are comprised of loans, other financial liabilities, trade payables and other
payables.

Such financial liabilities were recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.

Subseguent to inttial recognition, these financial liabilities were measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.
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Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (confinued)

iil. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group continues to recognize the financial asset in the statement of financial position i it retains substantially
all the risks and benefits arising from the ownership of a financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expired. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
meodified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The Group offsets its financial assets and liabilities and presents the net amount in its financial statements only
when it has a legal right to otfset and it intends to settle the transaction on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settte the liability simultaneously.

v. Derivative financial instrument and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments for the purpose of hedging foreign currency and interest risk rate,
Embedded derivative instruments are separated from the host contract and recognized separately when the
underlying contract is not a financial asses and met certain criteria.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition of derivative instruments,
changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.

The Group defines certain derivatives as hedging instruments in order to maintain the variability in the cash flows
refated to the high probability of realization arising from the changes in exchange rates and interest rates.

At the beginning of the hedge relationship, the Group makes a certification regarding the risk management purpose
and strategy that causes the hedging relationship and the operation of the enterprise.

The Group also decuments the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument,

including whether the changes in the cash flows of the hedged item and the hedging means are expected to offset
each other.
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Basis of presentation of the financial statements {continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (coniinued)

Financial instruments {continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Cash flow hedges

If & derivative instrument is designed as a cash flow hedge hedging instrument, the effective portion of the change
in the fair value of the derivative instrument is recognized in other comprehensive income and presented under
equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of the change in the fair value of the derivative is recognized
directly in profit or loss. The effective portion of the change in the fair value of the derivative instrument
determined on the present value basis from the beginning of the hedging relationship recognized in other
comprehensive income is limited to the cumulative eftect of the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument.

in the cash flow hedge relationship, the group defines only the change in the spot item of the forward contract as
a means of hedging.

The change in the fair value of forward value of forward foreign exchange purchase contracts is recognized as
hedging reserve as a hedging cost in equity as a hedging cost.

In the event that a non-financial asset or liability is subsequently recognized in the financial statements, the amount
accumulated in the hedging fund and the cost of hedging are included directly in the initial cost of the non-financial
asset or hahility.

For all other hedge transactions, the hedging reserve and the hedging cost are classified in profit or loss in the
hedging reserve in the period or pertods when the estimated future cash flows are affected by profit or loss.

The hedge accounting is discontinued in case the hedging relationship (or part of it} no longer meets the required
criteria, the hedging instrument is expired or sold, terminated or used. In case of discontinuation of cash flow
hedge accounting, the retained amount in the hedging fund shall continue to be classified under equity until the
hedged estimate of the non-financial item is recorded; hedging cost is included directly in the initial cost of the
non-financial item or, for other cash flow hedges, the cost of the hedge is reclassified to profit or loss in the period
or periods in which the estimated future cash flows hedged affect profit or loss.

If the expected future cash flows are no longer expected to materialize, the amount accumulated in the hedge fund
and the cost of that fund are immediately classified in profit or loss.

vi. Non-derivative financial assets

Financial instruments

The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:
- financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, which are
measured as 12-month ECL:

- bank balances for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition {i.e. the risk of
defauit over the expected life of the financial instrument).

The Group applied lifetime ECL for calculation of loss allowances for trade receivables.
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Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
Summary of significant accounting pelicies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued}

Cash flow hedges fcontinued)
vi. Non-derivative financial assets fcontinued)
Financial instruments {coniinued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantifative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days
past due.

Impairments of assets
Measurement of ECL

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. In other words, it is the credit losses that are measured
on the present value of all the cash deficits (for example, the difference between the cash inflows to the entity and
the cash flows expected by the entity to be collected based on the contract).

The cash deficit is the difference between the cash tlows to be incurred and the cash flows expected to be received
by the entity. As the amount and timing of payments are considered in anticipated credit fosses, a credit loss occurs
even if the enfity expects to receive the full payment in the contract with the maturity specified in the contract.
Expected credit loss are discounted over the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit-impaired.
A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- & breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial re-organization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial ditficulties.

Presentation of impairment

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subiect to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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Basis of presentation of the financial statements (contimed)

Summary of significant accounting policies (confinued)

Impairments of assets fcontinued)
Write-off (continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group. Where trade receivables, other receivables, other assets and contract
assets have been written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such indication
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested separately are grouped into the smallest units that generate
cash inflows from sustainable operations or cash-generating units (“CGU") independently of other assets and asset
groups. Goodwill arising in a business combination is allocated for impairment testing to CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the merger.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

I the carrying amount of CGU of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment charge is recognized.

hnpairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairments recognized in prior periods are reassessed in each
reporting period if there is a decrease in impairment or there are indications that the impairment is not valid. The
impairment is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used in determining the recoverable amount.

If the impairment of non-financial assets was not recorded in the previous periods, they are reversed to a extent
not exceeding the book value to be determined for the asset after deducting depreciation or amortization.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in

bringing them to their existing location and condition. The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method.
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Basis of presentation of the financial statements {continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
Related parties

Parties are considered related to the Group if;
{a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a repoerting entity it that person:
(i}  has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(i1) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(ili} is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting
entfity.
{b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i1} One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party, one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

{iv) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity
or an entity related to the Company. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers
are also related to the reporting entity,

(v} The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in {a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i} has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Goodwill

The goodwill amount arising from the purchase transaction is valued at the indexed cost value at the purchase date
after deducting any impairment provisions, if applicable.

For impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
are expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the combination.

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill is allocated is subject to impairment testing annually. If there are
indicators of impairment, the impairment test is performed more frequently. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the imipainnent provision is first deducted from the goodwill
allocated to the unit, and then the carrying amount of the assets within the unit is reduced. The impairment
provision aliocated to goodwill is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The impairment provision for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Upon the sale of the relevant cash-generating unit, the amount determined for goodwill is included in the
calculation of profit/loss in the sales transaction.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and meusurement

Property, plant and equipment except for land, land improvements, buildings and plant, machinery and equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The Group has opted for the option of measuring the
land, land improvements, buildings and plant, machinery and equipment in the property, plant and equipment by
revaluation method in accordance with TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. The revalued amount is the fair
value at the revaluation date less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. The increase resulting from the revaiuation of the land, land improvements, buildings and plant
machinery and equipment is recognized after netting the deferred tax effect on the revaluation reserve in equity.
Decreases resulting from the valuation of the revalued lands, land improvements, buildings and plant machinery
and equipment are also reflected as an expense, if any, exceeding the revaluation reserve amount due to the
previous valuation.
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Basis of presentation of the {inancial statements (continued)
Summary of significant accounting pelicies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment fcontinued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the net proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment, and are recognized net within “income from
investing activities” or “expenses from investing activities” in profit or loss.

During the production phase of the mine, the material removed when stripping in the production phase, often it
will be a combination of ore and waste. Removal of material with a low ratio of ore to waste may produce some
usable material, which can be used to produce inventory. This removal might alse provide access to deeper levels
of material that have a higher ratio of ore to waste that will be mined in future periods. The Group recognize
stripping activity asset when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the stripping activity
will flow to the Group, identify the component of the ore body for which access has been improved; and the costs
relating to the stripping activity associated with that component can be measured reliably. The Group shall allocate
the production stripping costs between the inventory produced and the stripping activity asset by using an
allocation basis that is based on mineral content of the ore extracted compared with expected mineral content to
be extracted, for a given quantity of ore produced.

Since some incidental operations may take place at the same time as the production stripping activity, bat which
are not necessary for the production stripping activity to continue as planned, these incidental operations are not
be included in the cost of the stripping activity asset.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an itemn of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced pait is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

ltems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are available for use, or in respect
of self-constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use. Depreciation is calculated
on a straight-tine basis over their estimated useful life. Depreciation is generally recognized in profit or loss unless
it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term. Land is not depreciated. On the other hand, the value increase amounts on the related fixed assets are
transferred to the prior year's profit and loss.

Depreciation expense for the period of revalued lands, land improvements, buildings and plant machinery and
equipinent is recognized in profit or loss. When the revalued lands, land improvements, buildings and plant
machinery and equipment are sold or withdrawn from service, the remaining balance in the revaluation reserve is
transferred directly to the prior years' losses. On the other hand, some of the increase in value is transferred to
retained earnings as the asset is used by the entity.

After initial recognition, the stripping asset is followed at cost less depreciation and impainment losses in the same
way as the current asset of which it is a part. The stripping asset is depreciated systematically according to the
production amount method over the expected useful life of the defined part of the ore deposit that is easier to access
as a result of the stripping.
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Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and eguipment (continued}

Depreciation {continued)

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Years
Buildings 5-50
Machinery and equipment 2-50
Furniture and fixtures 2-20
Vehicles 2-10
Land improvements 5.15
Leasehold improvements 2-5

Power generation plants depreciated over shorter of license tenm and their useful lives. The Group depreciates its
power generation plants in different useful lives in accordance to their different useful lives.

Years
Fuel oil power plants 4-22
Natural gas power plants 33-40
Coal plants 43

Overhaul costs related to power generation plants have different useful lives, then they are accounted as separate
items of power generation plants.

Depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted when necessary,

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement
Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group which have finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment Josses. In case of impairment, the book value of the
intangible assets is reduced to the recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditures

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization

Amortization is recognized in prefit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives of lcenses for the current and
comparative periods are between 2 and 49 years. Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
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Basis of presentation of the financial statements {continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value
assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
comimencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease, If this rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

+ fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

= variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

+ the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;,

» the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

+ payments of penalties for tenminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. The lease liability is
subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest miethod) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The Group
remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset} whenever:

+ The lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate,

«  The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating
interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

* A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group did not make any such adjustiments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment fosses.
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Basis of presentation of the financial statements (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee fcontinued)

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which
it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a
provision is recognised and measured under TAS 37. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless
those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. [f
a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset retlects that the Group
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies TAS 36 standard to determine whether the right-of-use assets are impaired or not, and
recognized ali the determined impairment losses as specified in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment” policy.

As a practical expedient, TFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not used this practical
expedient.

The Group as lessor

The Group, as a lessor, signs lease agreements for some of its investment properties. The Group also leases
equipment and equipment manufactured by the Group to retailers for the presentation of footwear products,
customer customization and testing.

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terns of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. Ali other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts,
The sublease 15 classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a siraight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in TFRS 9 to the net lease investment. The
Group regularly reviews the estimated uncommitted residual values used in the calculation of the gross lease
investment and in case of a decrease in the estimated uncommitted residual value, the Group revises the distribution
of income over the lease term and reflects the reductions in the accrued amounts directly to the financial statements,

When a contract includes lease and non-lease components, the Group applies TFRS 135 to allocate the consideration
under the contract to each component
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements {continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A Hability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. According to the current
Labor Law in Turkey is obliged to pay for any reason claimed by the employee if the ending, but unused anpual
leave belonging fee gross salary at the date when the contract expires and contractual other interests him or rights
to their owners over the total. The unused vacation liability is the undiscounted total liability amount that all
employees deserve but which are not yet used as of the reporting date. Liabilities arising from unused vacation
rights are accrued in the period in which they are entitled,

Other long-term employee benefits

In accordance with the existing labor law in Turkey, the Group entities in Turkey are required to make lump-surn
payments to employees who have completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without
cause or who retire, are called up for military service or die. The provision for employment termination benefits
represents the present value of the estimated future probable obligation of the Group in the event of the retirement
of its employees on a 30-day basis. The provision for employment termination benefits has been caleulated as if
ail employees will be subject to such a payment and is reflected in the consolidated financial statements on an
accrual basis. Severance pay provision has been calculated according to the severance pay ceiling announced by
the Government. As of 31 December 2023, the maximum severance pay is TL 23,489.83 (31 December 2022: TL.
15.371.40). The Group management used some assumptions in the calculation of the retirement pay provision as
detailed in Note 17. The Group recognizes actuarial differences in other comprehensive income,

Contingent liability and contingent assets

It is defined as a current asset or liability that will result in an outflow or inflow of resources that result from past
events and whose performance includes economic benefits. A contingent lability is disclosed, unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If the possibility of transfer of
assets is probable, contingent liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements. A contingent asset is
disclosed, when the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits te the entity is probable, I it has become virtually
certain that an inflow of economic benefits wili arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the
financial statements of the period in which the change oceurs,

Income from investment activities and expenses from investment activities

Income from investiment activities include profit on subsidiary sales, revenues from sales of fixed assets and scrap,
Expenses from investment activities include expenses and losses on sales of fixed assets and subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Amounts expressed Turkish Liva (“TL") in terms of the purchasing power of the TL. at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Finance income and finance expenses

Financing income include interest income on bank deposit that forms part of the cycle used for financing purposes,
interest income from funds made, foreign exchange income on financial assets and liabilities (other than trade
receivables and payables) and interest and maturity earnings received from related parties consisting of derivative
instruments and recognized in profit or loss.

Financial expenses include interest expenses on bank loans, foreign exchange losses on financial assets and
liabilities (other than trade receivables and payables), losses on derivative instruments recorded in profit or loss,
and interest and interest expense paid to related parties. Borrowing costs that cannot be directly associated with
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset are accounted for in consolidated profit or foss using the
effective interest rate.

Exchange rate income and expenses on financial assets and liabilities (other than trade receivables and payables)
are reported separately in finance income or finance expenses according to the net position of the currency
difference movements. Exchange rate difference and rediscount income on trade receivables and debts are reported
in other income from operating activities, exchange rate difference and rediscount expenses are reported in other
expenses from operating activities.

Earnings/(loss) per share

Earnings/(foss) per share disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are determined by dividing net earnings/(loss) or total comprehensive income/(expense) by the weighted average
number of shares that have been outstanding during the related period.

income as per share stated in the income statement is calculated by dividing the net profit by the weighted average
of the share certification available in the market during the whole year. In Turkey, companies can increase their
share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus shares™) to existing shareholders from retained
carnings. Such “bonus share” distributions are treated as issued shares in earnings per share calculations.
Accordingly, the weighted average number of shares used in these calculations has been calculated by taking into
account the retrospective effects of the aforementioned share distributions.

Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

It is calculated by taking into consideration the tax rates which are in etfect as of the end of the reporting period or
which are close to the registration date.

Current tax assets and liabilities can only be offset when certain conditions are met. Tax legislation in Turkey does
not allow the parent and subsidiaries to file consolidated tax returns. Therefore, the tax provision reflected in the
consolidated financial statements has been calculated on a separate basis.
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Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
Summary of significant accounting pelicies (continued)
Tax (contined)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated over the temporary differences between the book values of assets and Habilities in the
financial statements and the values used in the tax base. Deferred tax is not recognized for temporary differences
in the following cases:

. Temporary differences in the initial recognition of assets or liabilities resulting from a transaction that is nota
business combination and does not aftect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss;

. Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities that are
not likely to reverse in the foreseeable future and for which the Group has control over the reversal time, and

. Taxable temporary differences during the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized if it is probable that taxabic profits will be sufficient to offset unused tax losses,
tax benefits and deductible temporary differences in the future. Taxable profit is determined according to the business
plans of each subsidiary in the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and if it is probable that
taxable profits will be generated in the future, deferred tax assets that have not been previously recognized are
recognized, limited to these amounts.

The Group measures deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in a manner consistent with the tax consequences
of its expectations at the end of the reporting period regarding how its assets will recover or pay their liabilities,

The Company and its subsidiaries within the scope of consolidation have reflected their deferred tax assets and
liabilities in their financial statements by netting, but no offsctting has been made on a consolidated basis. Deferred
tax is calculated over the tax rates expected to be valid in the period in which the assets are created or liabilities
are fulfilled.

Tax risk

While determining the period tax expense and deferred tax expense amounts, the Group considers uncertain tax
positions and whether there is any additional tax and interest liability to be paid. In the event that new information
emerpes that will change the Group's professional opinion about the adeguacy of the current tax liability, this
change in the tax liability will affect the tax expense for the period in which this situation is determined.

Segment reporting

Operating segment is a part of the operating activities that the Group can generate revenues and expenditures from,
and the operating results ave regularty reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision maker in order to make
decisions regarding the resources to be allocated to the segment and to evaluate the performance of the segment,
and for which separate financial information is available.

Explanations on the operating segments for the periods ending on 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are
presented in Note 3,

Capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Statement of cash flow

In the statement of cash flow, cash flows for the period are classified and reported on the basis of principal,
investment and financing activities,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira (“TL") in terms of the purchasing power of the TL ai 31 December 2023, uniess otherwise stared. )

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued}
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Useful life of plant, property and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are available for use, or in respect
of self-constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use. Depreciation is recognized
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property and
equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is
reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated.

After initial recognition, the stripping activity asset is initially measured at its cost less depreciation and less
impairment losses. Stripping activity asset is depreciated on a systematic basis, over the expected useful life of
the identified component of the ore body that becomes more accessible as a result of the stripping activity.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

_Year
Buildings 5-50
Plant, machinery and equipment 2-50
Furnitures and fixtures 2-20
Vehicles 2-10
Land improvements 5-15
Leasechold improvements 2-5

Power generation plants depreciated over shorter of license term and their useful lives. The Group depreciates its
power generation plants in different useful lives in accordance to their different useful lives.

Year
Fuel oil power plants 4-22
Natural gas power plants 33-40
Coal plants 43

Overhaul costs related to power generation plants have different useful lives, then they are accounted as separate
items of power generation plants.

Depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
Calculation of loss allowance

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, which is based on
assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the Joss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash tlows from collateral
and integral credit enhancements,

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of the
likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of future conditions.

Comparative information and restatement of prior periods’ consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in comparison with the prior period in order to
atlow the determination of financial position and performance trends. In order to comply with the presentation of
the current period consolidated financial statements, comparative information is reclassified when deemed
necessary and significant differences are disclosed. In accordance with the accounting policy changes specitied in
Note 2.1, the Group has restated its prior period financials. In the current year there is no reclassification in the
consolidated financial statements.
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{dmounts expressed Turkish Lira ("TL") in terms of the puwrchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless othervise stared )

Operating segments

The geographical information presented below analyzes the Group's revenue, profit before inferest, tax,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA), assets and liabilities, taking into account the country where the Group
is located and the African region. In the presentation of this information, segment revenue and EBITDA are
presented according to the geographical location of the customers, and the segment assets and liabilities are
presented according to the geographical location.

I January — 31 December 2023

Turkey (¥} Adrica Asia Total
Total segment income 27,282,509,183 4,644,978,001 3,244,770,248  35,172,257,432
Profit before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization {(EBITDA) 3.302,505.203 2,373,156,320 2,224,946,861 7,900,608,384
I January — 31 December 2022
Turkey (¥} Africa Asia Total
Total segment income 78.583,615,553 5,639,329 489 2878, 726434  87,101,671,476
Profit before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) (%) 6.393,040,080 4,304,915,891 1.956.902,832  12,654,858,803
(*) As of 31 December 2022, the unadjusted EBITDA figure is TL 6,558,757,458.
1 January — 31 December 2023
Turkey {*) Africa Asia Total
Recoenciliation of EBITDA with profit
before taxes: 3.302,505,203 2,373,156,320 2,224,946.,861 7,904,608,384
Depreciation and amortization (684,326,000) {493,359,566) (369.061,285) (1,546,946 911}
Finance income/{expenses), net (599,066,649) 2,523.477459 {242,686,408) 1,681,724,402
Income/{expenses) on investing activities {41,598.848) 247,563 - (41,351,283)
Net monetary position gains (852,529,743) - - (852,529,743)
Profit before tax 1,124,983,583 4,403,321,778 1.613,199,168 7,141,504,849
1 January - 31 December 2022
Turkey (*) Africa Asia Teotal
Reconciliation of EBITDA with profit
before taxes: 6,393,040,080 4,304,915,891 1,956,962.832  12,654,858,803
Depreciation and amortization {701,577,000)  (1,369.653,676) (324,019329)  (2,395,250,005)
Finance income/{expenses), net (378,276.106) 1,205,779,760 (118,375.446) 709,128,214
Income/{expenses) on investing activities (2,356,622,989) - - {2,356,622,989)
Net monefary position gains {455,260,804) - - (455,260,804}
Profit before tax 2,501,303,181 4,141,041,981 1,514,508,057 8,156,853,219
31 December 2023
Turkey (*) Alrica Asia Total
Segment assets 24.386,331,637 15,778.462,253 15,641,487,531 55,806,281,421
Segment liabilities 11,363,393,285 4,053,173,093 5,754,073,986 21,170,640,364
31 December 2022
Turkey (*) Africa Asia Total
Segment assets 24,313,227,522 16,242 ,686,201 14,647,789,322 55,203,703,045
Segment liabilities 15,062,515.856 4,993,239.674 2,733,737.894 22,789,493,424

(*) TRNC are included in Turkey.
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Related party disclosures

Related party balances

Short-term receivables from related parties as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Short-term receivables Trade Non-trade Trade Non-trade
Short-term receivables 2,549,022 344 4.011,449673 -
Total 2,549,022,344 4,011,449,673 -

Receivables from related parties:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Trade Non-trade

Trade Non-trade

Aksa Elektrik Satis A.S.

1,916,988,809

3.212,489.670 -

Firat Elektrik Perakende Satis A.S. 414,314,295 536,556,507 -
Coruh Elektrik Perakende Satis AS. 93,122,137 119,071,337 -
Koni Ingaat Sanayi A.S. 90,727,529 125,580,154 -
Rasa Endiistrivel Radyatérier San. A.S. 20,000,000 1,724,148

Aksa Dogalgaz Toptan Satis A.S. 11,883,878 15,557,066 -
Other 1,985,696 470,791 -
Total 2,549,022,344 4,011,449,673 -

For all reccivables from related parties, the interest rate is calculated by taking into account the borrowing interest

rate.
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Related party disclosures (continued)

Related party balances {continued)

Short-term payables to related parties as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Short-term payables Trade Non-trade Trade Non-trade
Short-term payables 272,492 454 12,534 251,661,557 36,248
Total payables 272,492,454 12,534 251,661,557 36,248

Payables to related parties:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Trade Non-frade

Trade Non-frade

Aksa Dogalgaz Toptan Satis A.S. 59,703,789 - 6,317,339 -
Rasa Endiistriyel Radyatdrler San. A.S. 45,384,249 - 3,023,213 -
Kazanct Holding A.S. 44,694,110 - 1,188,156 -
Aksa Jeneratdr Sanayi A.S. 42,673,651 - 18,249,805 -
Aksa Servis ve Kiralama A.S. 26,850,811 - 21,569,286 -
Aksa Elektrik Sans A.S. 16,998,757 - 26,652,350 -
Aksa Far East(Pte.)Ltd. 14,934,178 - 15,629,690 -
Koni Insaat Sanayi A S. 9,030,910 - 678,508 -
Atk Sigorta Aracihk Hiz. A.S. 7,818,339 - 20,160,758 -
Aksa Sanhwrfa Dogalgaz Dagitim A.S. - - £34,429.610 -
Other 4.403,660 12,334 3,762,842 36,248
Total 272,492,454 12,534 251,661,557 36,248
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AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounis expressed Turkish Lira {“TL”) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless othenwize stated.

5 Trade receivables and payables

{a)  Short-term trade receivables

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, trade receivables from third parties consist of the following items:

Short-term trade receivables 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Trade receivables 11,550,808,092 11,465,369,563
Trade receivables from related parties {Note 4} 2,549,022,344 4,011,449.673
Provision of expected credit losses {-) (569,735,029 {289.,260,363)
Total trade receivables 13,530,095,407 15,187,558,873

Details on credit risk, currency risk and impainment of the Group's short-term trade receivables are explained in
Note 30.

Movement of expected credit loss as of 31 December as follows:

2023 2022
Balance as at 1 January 289,260,303 200,078,599
Provision made during the period, net 428,615,592 170,684,780
Foreign cwirency translation differences (139,990,113 (71.452.146)
[nflation effect (8,150,813 (10.056.870)
31 December balance 569,735,029 289,260,363

(b) Shert-term trade payables

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, trade payables to third parties consist of the following items:

Short-term trade payables 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Trade payables 3,067,869,735 3,259,438,145
Trade payables to related parties (Note 4) 272,492 454 251,661,557
Total trade payables 3,340,362,189 3,51%,099,702

The foreign currency and liquidity risk regarding the short-term trade payables of the Group is explained in Note
30.
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Cash and cash equivalents

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

31 Becember 2023 31 December 2022
Cash on hand 8,593,970 4,244,787
Cash at banks 786,251,820 1,540,218,647
- Demand deposits 728,230,221 1,029,008,053
- Time deposits (¥) 58021.59¢ 511,208,419
- Restricted cash - 2,175
Other cash and cash equivalents 36,544 -
Total 794,882,334 1,544.463.434
Restricted cash amount - (2,175)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 794,882,334 1,544,461,259

(*) As of 31 December 2023, the Group has:

« TL 29,500,000 with 41% interest rate and a maturity of 2 January 2024, TL 15,000,000 with a 40% interest rate
and a maturity of 2 January 2024, TL 8,268,653 with 39.57% interest rate and a maturity of 2 January 2024 and TL
5,000,000 with %35 interest rate and a maturity of 2 January 2024 (As of 31 December 2022, the Group has TL
41,192,500 with a maturity of 2 January 2023 with an interest rate of 8,5%, TL 70,700,000 with a maturity of 2
January 2023 with an interest rate of 13%, TL 467,946,800)

Credit, currency, interest rate risks and sensitivity analyzes for the Group's cash and cash equivalents are disclosed
in Note 30.

Financial investments
Financial assets

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, financial assets comprise the following:

Short-term financial investments 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Restricted cash(*) 876,290,463 -
Time deposits (¥¥) - 504,878,236
Total 876,290,463 504,878,236

{*) This balance belongs to the credit used for Talimercan investment and will be utilized within the year 2024,
(**) TL 14,797,829 with 14% interest rate and a maturity of 30 January 2023, TL 458,764,168 with a 15% interest
rate and a maturity of 29 March 2023,

Financial assets Acquisition%o 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Enerji Pivasalari isletme A.S, (%) 0.67 3.095470 3,095,470
Total 3,095,470 3,095470

(*) As of 20 November 2014, 412,408 Group C shares have been purchased by the Group in order to participate in
the capital of Enerji Piyasalan Isletme A.S.

According to TFRS 9, since cost is a reflection of the fair value estimation, financial investments are presented at
their cost value,
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(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira ("TL"} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.)

Financial investments (continued)

Derivative financial assets and labilities

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for as dertvative financiat instruments in the consolidated financial
statements, unless they are designed in the hedging relationship required for hedge accounting. Hedging
transactions that fulfill the Group's hedge accounting requirements are classified as hedging derivative financial
instruments.

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the details of derivative financial instruments are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Fair value Fair value
Shert-term derivative financial instruments Asset Liability Asset Liability
Cash flow hedges 12,984,732 18,601,681 -
Held for trading 12,984,732 18,601,681 -
Total 25,969,464 37,203,362

All derivative financial instruments with net receivables (positive fair value), including options purchased, are
reported as derivative tinancial assets, and all derivative financial instruments with net liabilities (negative fair
value) are reported as derivative financial liabilities.

The Group's credit and currency risks related to derivative financial instruments are explained in Note 30.
Financial liabilities

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, liabilities comprise the following:

Short-term 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Short-term bank borrowings 2,956,937.075 3,943,580,721
Short-term portion of long-terin bank borrowings 5,214,092.682 3,856,471,038
Total short-term borrowings 8,171,029.757 7,800,051,759
Long-term

Long-term bank borrowings 5,077,656,835 6,237,181,973
Total borrowings 13,248.686,592 14,037,233,732

Cotlateral information of financial borrowings is given in Note 16.
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{Amounts expressed Turkish Liva (*TL ") in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.}

Financial liabilities {continued)

The maturities and terms for the open borrowings as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Currency Interest rate 31 December 2023
TL 12.00% - 50.5% 2.757,395,655
UsD 3.60% - SofroM+6.35% 8.683,798.490
EUR 8.5% - 9.25% 1,020,304,164
UZS 20.50% - 22.5% 171,602,854
KZT 18.75% - 19.75% 615,585,429
Total 13,248,686,592
Currency Interest rate 31 December 2022
TL 7.50% - 34.00% 5,784,849,556
LiboréM +5.50%
usp 6.35% - %58.50% 8.252,384,176
Total 14,037,233,732
31 December 2023
Maturity Currency Currency amount TL Amount
Less than { year USD 190,566,470 5,609,933,845
EUR 8,174,314 266,269,272
TL 2,043,208,029 2,043,208.,029
UZS 61,952 667,333 147,876,044
KZT 1,601,905,734 103,742,567
1-2 Years UsSD 52,709,920 1,551,685,156
EUR 7,505,011 244,467 488
TL 576,585,012 576,585,012
Uzs 9,940,348,349 23,726,812
KZT 1,740,475,212 112,716,599
2-3 Years usp 32,862,085 967,399,759
EUR 6,246,418 203,470,205
TL 137,602,612 137,602,612
KZT 1,725,446,182 111,743,290
3-4 Years Usp 18,845,572 554,779,730
EUR 5,162,234 168,154,104
KZT 1,314,308,632 85,123,042
4-5 Years EUR 3,256,288 106,069,988
KZT 859,417,063 55,657,540
+5 Years EUR 978,486 31,873,107
KZT 2,263,711,196 146,602,391
Total 13,248,686,592
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Financial liabilities (continued)

31 December 2022

Maturity Currency Currency amount TL Amount
Less than | year UsDh 188,993,956 3,533,805,600606
TL 4,266,186,093 4,266,186,093
1-2 Years UsD 111,109,025 2,077,549,877
TL 798,397,227 798,397,227
2-3 Years USD 75,298 283 1,407,949,887
TL 582,289,539 582,289,539
3-4 Years UsD 40,833,861 763,523,776
TL 137,976,723 137,976,723
4.5 Years usD 25,108,964 469,494 944
Tatal 14,037,233,732

The details of payables from leases are as follows:

The Group's lease obligations represent the present value of the future payables of the power plant land, vehicle
and building leased from third parties during the useful life of the asset,

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the TL equivalent values and the repayment schedule of financial
lease payables as of the balance sheet date are as follows:

Currency Interest Type Payment Period Interest Rate 31 December 2023
L Fixed 21 September 2038 14.38% - 31.54% 177,559,910
USD Fixed 20 January 2039 1.77% - 11.07% 13,439,713
EUR Fixed 31 March 2024 3.43% - 8.74% 412,593
191,412,222

Currency Inferest Type Payment Period Interest Rate 31 December 2022
TL Fixed 25 March 2038 19.37% - 31.54% 135,168,187
UsD Fixed 20 October 2038 1.77% - 8.97% 11,021,974

EUR Fixed 1 June 2023 3.43%-7.43% 753,433

Total 146,943,504
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Other receivables and payables
Other short-term receivables

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, other short-term receivables from unrelated parties consist of
the following items:

Other short-term receivables 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Receivables from subsidiary sales (*) 55,167,644 94,871,019
Deposits and guarantees given 702,324 1,089,983
Other £,237.491 115,291
Total 57,107,459 96,076,293

(*} Consists of receivables from Borusan EnBW Enerji Yatiimlar ve Uretim A.S due to the sale of Alenka Enerji.

The details of the credit and currency risk refated to the Group's other short-term receivables are disclosed in Note
30.

Other long-term receivables

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, other long-term receivables from unrelated parties consist of the
following items:

Other long-term receivables 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Deposits and guarantees given 6,381,582 8,821,433
Other - 13,292,497
Total 6,381,582 22,113,930

The details of the credit and currency risk related to the Group's other long-term receivables are disclosed in Note
30.

Other short-term liabilities

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, other short-term liabilities consist of the following items:

Other short-term payables 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Tax, duty, fee (*} 484.900,125 495,832,716
VAT payable 223,823,199 245989.436
Deposits and guarantees received 3,486,915 5405775
Trade payables to related parties {Note 4) 12,534 36,248
Other 20,687 32,156,162
Total 712,243,460 779,420,337

Other long-term liabilities

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, other long-term payables consist of the following items:

Other long-term payables 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Tax, duty, fee (*) 994,893,867 965,090,807
Total 994,893,867 965,090,807

(*)} These are corporate tax payments in instaliments for foreign subsidiaries,

Currency and liquidity risk related to the Group's other short-term payables are explained in Note 30.
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(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira (" TL”) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 20123, unless otherwise stated.}

Inventeries

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the inventories are as foliows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Raw materials 714,161,890 288,550,713
Operating materials 21,305,102 35,104,417
Work-in-progress 166,888,337 12,875,179
Provision for impainnent on inventories (-} (6,378,252) (15,936,168)
Total 895,977,077 320,594,141

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's inventories mainly consist of fuel oil, oil, fuel, coal and operating materials
and there is no pledge, annotation or guarantee given on the inventories.

Whether or not there is a decrease in the value of the inventories is determined over the net realizable value of the
inventories that have not moved for & long time as a result of the aging studies,

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses — short-term

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, short-term prepaid expenses consist of the following items:

Short-term prepaid expenses 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Raw material purchase advances given 280,931,376 421,267,074
Prepaid insurance expenses 98,803,330 89,945,972
Other prepaid expenses 47,974,847 12,740,105
Total 427,709,553 543,953,151

Prepaid expenses — long-term

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, long-term prepaid expenses consist of the following items:

Long-term prepaid expenses 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Fixed asset advances given (¥} 1,854,876,374 21,723,128
Prepaid letter of guarantee commissions 8222368 12,980,480
Total 1,863,098,742 34,703,608

{*) There are advances given in accordance with maintenance contracts.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Property, plant and equipment 34,713,521,107 34,952 576,382
Mining assets 303,091,166 330,855,779
Total 35,016,612,273 35,283,432.161
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AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amarunis expressed Twrkish Lira ("TL ) in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless atherwise stated.)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the details of the expenditures classified under the construction
in progress item of the projects under construction are as foflows:

Project 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Other (*) 936,635,363 169,379,224
Total 036,635,363 169,379,224

(*) It consists of investments in Congo, which are under construction in Aftica, and investments in other domestic
power plants.

Mining assets

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, mining assets consist of mine site development and deferred
mining costs.

Cost: 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Deferred stripping costs 713,072,392 713,072,392
Mine site development cost 30,709,879 50,709,879
763,782,271 763,782,271
Accumulated amortization:
Deferred stripping costs 434,049,573 408,490,210
Mine site development cost . 26,641,532 24,436,282
460,691,105 432,926,492
Net book value 303,091,166 330,855,779
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets

Movement tables of intangible assets as of 31 December 2023 are summarized as follows:

Cost Rights Other Total
Balance as at 1 January 2023 864,135475 7,979,186 872,114,661
Additions 64,401,777 - 64,401,777
Disposals (9,430,365) - (9.430,365)
Foreign currency translation differences (18,656,802 - (18,656,802
Balance as at 31 December 2023 000,450,085 7,979,186 908,429,271

Amortization

Balance as of 1 January 2023 123,691,067 7,694,088 131,385,155
Period charge 30,807,410 99,759 30,907,169
Disposals (943,037) - (943,037)
Foreign currency translation differences (1,141,179 - (£,141,179)
Balance as of 31 December 2023 152,414,261 7,793,847 160,208,108
Net book value 748,035,824 185,339 748,221,163
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AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

{Amounts expressed Turkish Lira (“TL"} in terms of the purchasing power of the TL af 31 December 2023, unless otherwise stated.)

Intangible Assets (continued)

Intangible assets

Movement tables of intangible assets as of 31 December 2022 are summarized as follows:

Cost Rights Other Total
Balance as at I January 2022 791,843,756 7,679,883 799,523,639
Additions 147,641,728 299,303 147,941,031
Foreign currency translation differences {75.350,009) - (75,350,009
Balance as at 31 December 2022 864,135475 7,979,186 872,114,661

Amortization

Balance as of 1 January 2022 103,868,356 7,358,651 111,227,007
Period charge 27,583,674 335437 27,919,111
Foreign currency translation difterences (7,760,963 - {7,760,963)
Balance as of 31 December 2022 123,691,067 7,694,088 131,385,155
Net book value 740,444,408 285,098 740,729,506
Goodwill

Aksa Ndar Holding, a subsidiary of Aksa Enerji, accounted for the value resulting from the acquisition of 85% of
Ndar Energies SA's shares, which amounted to 358,313,663 TL, under goodwill in the consolidated financial
statements for the year 2023,
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AKSA ENERJI URETIM A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed Turkish Lira (“TL"j in terms of the purchasing power of the TL at 31 December 2023, unless othenvvise stated

Right-of-use assets

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, right-of-use assets consist of the following items:

Land of

Power Plants Buildings Vehicles Total
Balance as of 1 January 2023 194,808,592 6,552,990 22,469,451 223,831,039
Additions 307,140,557 25,622,114 12,560,487 345323,158
Changes in leases 2,991,776 4,443,069 864,898 8,200,743
Disposals (150,220,846) (535,522 - (150,756,368)
Amortization and depreciation for
the petiod (85,361,969) (28,509.381) (17,121.510) (130,992,860)
Foreign currency translation effect (2,462,061) (1,709.410) {318,726) {4,490,203)
Balance as of 31 December 2023 266,896,049 5,863,860 18,454,600 291,214,509

Land of

Power Plants Buildings Vehicles Total
Balance as of I January 2022 247,225,337 21,477,249 4,659,531 273,362,117
Additions 219,886,473 18,247,226 27.981,877 266,115,576
Changes in leases 578,477 3,819,057 1,390,386 10,788,120
Disposals (224,826,322) (19,437.043) - (244,263,365)
Amortization and depreciation for
the period (44,083,422) (28,227,011 (11,279.972) {76,590,405)
Foreign currency translation effect (3,971.951) (1,326,482) (282,571) (5,581,004)
Balance as of 31 December 2022 194,808,592 6,552,996 22,469,451 223,831,039

The Group, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use assets representing its rights to use the underlying assets and
lease liabilities representing its obligation to make lease payments.

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

Short-term provisions

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, short-term provisions are as follows:

Short-term provisions

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Litigation

28,494,921

29,655,239

Total

28,494,921

29,655,239
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15 Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities(continued)
(a)  Shert-term provisions{continued)
The movement of provisions for the years ended 31 December is as foilows:
Litigations
I January 2022 opening 24,274,256
Proviston released (Note 22) (5,145,058)
Current year provision (Note 21) 22,153,081
[nflation effect (11,432,676)
Foreign currency translation differences (194.364)
31 December 2022 closing 29,655,239
1 January 2023 opening 29,655,239
Provision released {Note 22) (1,121,436)
Payments (-) (616,614)
Current year provision (Note 21} 14,602,751
Inflation effect (14,008,045)
Foreign currency translation differences (16,974)
31 December 2023 closing 28,494,921
Litigation provisions consist of reemployment lawsuits and expropriation lawsuits.
{b}  Long-term provisions

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, long-term provisions are as follows:

Long-term provisions

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Rehabilitation fee

106,632,257

105,481,242

Total

106,632,257

105,481,242

The movement of provisions for the years ended 31 December is as follows:

Rehabilitation fee

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

1 January 2023 opening 105,481,242 -
Current year provision 4,715,130 105,481,242
Foreign currency translation differences (3.564,115) -
Total 106,632,257 105,481,242
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Commitments

Guarantees, pledges and mortgages given (*GPM")

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s guarantees, pledge and mortgage (GPM) position is disclosed as

follows:

Guarantees, Pledges and Mortgages Given by the Group (GPM)

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

A. GPM given for companies own legal personality
B. GPM given in behalf of fully consolidated companies
C. GPM given for continuation of its economic activities on behalf of third

parties
D. Total amount of other GPM's

i. Total amount of GPM’'s given on behalf of majority shareholder
ii. Total amount of GPM’s given on behalf of other Group companies

which are not in scopeof Band C

ifi. Total amount of GPM’s given on behalf of third parties which are not

in scope of C

15,892,168,838
17.613,028,579

11,335,482,837
20,835,737,304

Total GPM

33,505,197,417

32,171,220,141

As of 31 December 2023, the ratio of other guarantees, pledges, and mortgages provided by the Group to the
Group's equity is 0% {31 December 2022: 0%).

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the details of the letters of guarantee given by the Group are as

foliows:
31 December 2023 TL USh EUR CHF  TL Equivalent
Republic of Turkey Energy Market
Regulatory Authority 120,085,181 - - 120,685,111
Enerji Piyasalan i$lctme AS. 520,550,000 - - 520,550,060
Tiirkiye Elektrik Hetigim A.$. 62,934,523 . 591,187 - 82,191,775
Turkish Coal Enterprises
Institution{TKI) 33371713 - - 33,311,713
Boru Hatlan {le Petrot Tagima A S. 665,042 - - B 665,642
Enforcement Offices 19,931,232 - - - 19,931,232
Electricity Distribution Compuanies 328,167 16498486 - - 486,013,910
Other 27,076,765 4,306,740 260,000 800,000 194,301,928
Total 784,942,553 20,805,226 851,187 800,800 1,453,110,711
31 December 2022 TL. USD EUR CHF  TL Equivalent
Republic of Turkey Energy Market
Regulatory Authority 1.527,253,313 - - - 1,527,253,313
Tirkiye Elektrik Tietisim A.S. 62,512,247 - 200,000 - 69,081,594
Turkish Coal Enterprises
Enstitution{ TK1) 21,635,245 - - - 21,635,245
Boru Hatlan e Petrol Tagima A.S. £,095,790 - - - 1,895,790
Enforcement Offices 9,934,404 - - - 9.934 494
Electricity Distribution Companies 15,395,359 15,586,859 - - 495,613,842
Other 42,118,007 3,061,212 370,000 800,000 175,214,107
Total 1,679,944,455 18,648,071 576,800 800,600 2,299.828,385
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Commitments {continued)
Guarantees received

The details of the letters of guarantee received by the Group as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are
as follows:
31 December 2023

Type of Guarantees TL USD EUR KZT TL Eqguivalent
Letter of guarantee 171,641,563 52,582 446 26,154,753 28,621,350 2,573,389,986
Notes taken for collaterals 26,345,405 1,034,174 [,184,169 - 95,362,616
Cheques taken for collaterals 8,400,000 28,000 3,456,000 . 121,799,668
Mortgage 700,000 - - - 700,000
Total 207,086,968 53,644,620 30,794,922 28,621,350 2,791,252,270

31 December 2022

Type of Guarantees TL USD EUR KZT TL Equivalent
Letter of guaraniee 628,445,266 49 478 9006 6,388,484 - 2,346,834,183
Notes taken for collaterals 43,409,324 1,034,174 1,184,169 - 113,836,028
Cheques taken for collaterals 13,840,680 28.000 3,456,600 - 128,212,679
Mortgage 1,153,390 - - - 1,153,360
Total 686,848,660 50,541,080 11,028,653 - 2,590,036,280

Employee benefits
Provision for unused vacation

Shert-term provisions for employee benefits consist of provision for unused vacation. For the accounting period
ending on 31 December 2023, provision for unused vacation amounting to TL 11,594,817 (31 December 2022:
TL 9,745,225) was recognized.

The amount of provision for unused vacation is calculated by multiplying the remaining leave days with the daily
wage. Current period provision expenses are recognized in cost of sales and general administrative expenses
accounts in the consolidated financial statements.

Provision for employment termination benefits

According to the Turkish Labor Law, the Group is obliged to pay severance pay to each employee who completes at
least one year of service and retires after 25 years of working life (aged 58 for women, 60 for men), terminated, called
for military service or passed away.

Provision for employment termination benefits to be paid as of 31 December 2023 is subject to a monthly ceiling of TL
23.489.83 (31 December 2022: TL 15,371.40).

Provision for employment termination benefits is not legally subject to any funding. Provision for employment
termination benefits is calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Company
arising from the retirement of the employees. TAS 19 Employee Benefits requires the company's liabilities to be
developed using actuarial valuation methods within the scope of defined benefit plans. Accordingly, the actuarial
assumptions used in the calculation of total liabilities are as follows:

The main asswiption is that the maximum liability amount for each year of service will increase in line with inflation.
Therefore, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the eftects of future inflation.
Therefore, provisions in the accompanying financial statements as of 31 December 2023 are cajculated by estimating
the present value of the future probable obligation arising from the retirement of the employees. Provisions at the
relevant balance sheet dates are calculated using the real discount rate, which is approximately 3.13% (31 December
2022: 2.01%), based on the assumptions of annual 23.20% inflation and 27.05% interest rate. Voluntary dismissal rates
are 19.65% for those working for 0 - 15 years and 0% for 15 vears or more. The maximum amount of TL 35,058.58
effective from 1 January 2023 has been taken into account in the calculation of the provision for employment
termination benefits (1 January 2023: TL 19,982 83),
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17 Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Provision for employment termination benefits (continued)

The movements in the provision for severance pay for the accounting period ending on 31 December are as follows:

2023 20622
1 January opening 38,419,831 25,953,730
Service cost 22,514,854 26,470,301
Payments (-) (12,631,450 (2,017,036)
Actuarial loss 252,480 (159.328)
Transtation difference (*) 218,121 {843,547y
Inflation effect (14,117,388 {10,984,288)
31 December closing 34,656,448 38,419,832

(*) As of 2020, severance pay is reserved for employees at Group’s power plants operating in Africa.
() Payables related to employee benefits

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, payables within the scope of employee benefits are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Payables to personnel 46,108,068 28,995,595
Social security deductions payable 22,104,111 9,752,616
Total 68,212,179 38,748,211

18 Other assets and liabilities

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, other current assets are as follows:

Other current assets 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Deferred Value Added Tax (“VAT™) 445725003 316,787,586
Other 13,326,719 10,857,664
Total 459,051,722 327,645,250

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, other current liabilities are as follows:

Other short-term liabilities 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Advances received 31,044,416 27,690,414
Other 3,201,079 407,035
Total 34,245,495 28,097,449
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Share capital, reserves and other equity items

Issued capital

The Group switched to the registered capital system with the permission of CMB dated 16 April 2010 and
numbered 10/330, and the registered capital ceiling is TL 4,750,000,000 (31 December 2022: TL 4,750,000,000).
The registered capital ceiling permission granted by the Capital Markets Board is valid for the years 2021-2025 (5
years).

It has been registered that the Group's capital was increased by 100% by using internal resources to TL
1,226,338,236 within the registered capital ceiling of TL 4,750,000,000 and the amendment of article 6 of the
articles of association regarding capital by the Istanbul Trade Registry on 5 October 2021.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's issued capital is TE 1,226,338,236 (31 December 2022: TE 1,226,338,236),
Issued capital consists of 1,226,338,236 shares, each with a nominal value of TL 1 (31 December 2022:
1,226,338,236 shares).

The capital structure of the Group as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Share rate Share Share rate Share
Shareholder (%) amount (%) amoun{
Kazanct Holding 79.415 973,901,660 79.415 973,901,660
Public share (*) 20,582 252,398,076 20,582 252,398,076
Other 0.003 38,500 0.003 38,500
Total 160,00 1,226,338,236 100.00  1,226,338,236
Inflation adjustment - 8,628,197,049 - 8,628,197,049

Total 100.00  9,854,535,285 160.00  9,854,535,285

(*) The shares acquired by Kazanci Holding from the shares under the publicly traded item in 2012, 2013 and 2018
are presented in the publicly traded item shares in the table above. Together with the shares purchased by Kazanci
Holding among the publicly traded shares, its sharcholding portion in our partnership is 79.415%. As of 31
December 2023, these shares are 9,917,924 (31 December 2022: 9,917,924},

The details of the shares on a group basis as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Share rate Share Share rate Share
Group (%) amount {%) amount
A Group (Registered share) 4793 587,792 440 47.93 387,792,440
B Group (Bearer share) 52.07 638,545,796 32.07 638,345,796
Issued Capital 100.00  1,226,338,236 100.00 1,226,338,236

TL 262,316,000 of the bearer B group shares are traded on BIST,

On 2 August 2016, under the leadership of Garanti Bank and Isbank, a new loan agreement amounting to a total of
USD 800 miilion was signed between T.R. Ziraat Bankast A.$., Tirkiye Halk Bankast A.S., Tittkiye Vakiflar
Bankast T.A.O., Odea Bank A.S. and Tiirkiye Smai Kalkinma Bankast A.S. and Kazanc: Holding and Aksa Dogal
Gaz Dagitim A.§. As a guarantee for this loan, Aksa Enerji shares, representing a total of 78.6% of Aksa Enerji
shares owned by Kazanci Holding, were pledged to Isbank, the Collateral Representative, by Kazanc: Holding.
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Share capital, reserves and other equity items (continued}

Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans:

It consists of actuarial gains and losses recognized as other comprehensive income as a result of the adoption of
TAS 19 {2011) standard. As of 31 December 2023, the Group's Defined Benefit Plans Remeasurement Gains are
TL (99,367 (31 December 2022: TL 346.110).

Hedging reserve:

The hedging reserve consists of the effective portion of the accumulated net change in the fair value of the cash
flow hedging instrument related to the fransaction subject to hedging, which has not yet been realized. As of 31
December 2023, the Group's hedging losses are TE (1,4206,597,774) (31 December 2022 TL (2,021,934,160)).

Foreign currency translation differences:

Foreign currency translation differences consist of all foreign currency exchange differences arising from the
translation of the foreign currency based financial statements of the Group’s operations abroad into TL, the
functional currency of the Company. As of 31 December 2023, the Group's foreign currency translation differences
are TL 336,407,232 (31 December 2022: TL 3,078,064,703),

Valuation increase of property, plant and equipment:

Valuation increases of property, plant and equipment consist of revaluation differences in fand, buildings, land
improvements and plant, machinery and equipment. As of 31 Dccember 2023, the Group's property, plant and
equipment valuation increases are TL 3,327,530,769 (31 December 2022: TL 3,207,341,897).

Restricted reserves appropriated from profit:
Legal reserves:

The legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code (“TCC”). The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of historical statutory
profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Group’s historical paid-in share
capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 1/10 of all cash dividend distributions exceeding 5%
of the company’s capital in cases where profit distribution is made according to CMB regulations, and in cases
where dividends are distributed according to legal records, it is appropriated at the rate of 1711 per annum of all
cash distributions in excess of 3% of the historical paid-in share capital. The legal reserves are not available for
distribution unless they exceed 50% of the historical paid-in share capital but may be used to offset losses in the
event that historicat general reserve is exhausted. As of 31 December 2023, the Group's total legal reserves are TL
1,304,111,526 (31 December 2022: TL 1,003,991,030).

Dividend:

1t has been decided that the profit distribution will be realized within the framework of the principles in the
“Dividend Communiqué” Serial: 11-19.1 of the CMB, the provisions in the articles of association of the partnerships
and the profit distribution policies disclosed to the public by the companies. In addition, in the aforementioned
Communiqué, companies that are obliged to prepare consolidated financial statements are required to calculate the
net distributable profit amount, as long as it can be covered from the resources in their legal records, by taking into
account the net profit for the period in their consolidated financial statements that they will prepare and publicly
disclose in accordance with the Communiqué Serial: 11-14.1.

In publicly held partnerships, dividends are distributed equally to ali of the existing shares as of the date of
distribution, regardless of their issue and acquisition dates.

At the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on 2 May 2023, it was approved to distribute TL 1,429,632,477
of the net distributable period profit from the activities of 2022 (nominal amount TL 1,000,000,000 at the general
assembly meeting) as dividends.
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Share capital, reserves and other equity items {continued)
Non-controlling interest:

The parts of the net assets of the subsidiaries, which correspond to the shares not in the direct and/or indirect control
of the parent company, are classified under the “Non-controlling interests” item under equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position. As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the amounts classitied under the
line item “Non-controlling interests™ in the consolidated statement of financial position are TL 2,906,529,556 and
TL 2,884,271,560 respectively.

In addition, the parts of the net assets of the subsidiaries, which correspond to the shares not in the direct and/or
indirect control of the parent company, are classified under the “Non-controlling interests” item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. As of the period ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022, the profit and loss of non-controlling interests out of the total comprehensive income is TL
22,257,996 and TL 360,592,575 respectively, within the item “Non-controlling interests™.

Prior years’® profit:

Accumulated profits/losses other than net profit for the period are offset in this item. Extraordinary reserves that
are in the nature of accumulated profit/loss are also considered as retained earnings and presented in this item. As
of 31 December 2023, the Group's prior years' profit is TL 12,§79,593,007 (31 December 2022: prior years’ profit
is TL 8,826,027,288).

A comparison of the Group's equity items restated for inflation in the consolidated financial statements as of 31
December 2023 and the restated amounts in the financial statements prepared in accordance with Law No, 6762
and other legislation are as follows:

Inflation adjusted
amounts in the Inflation adjusted

financial amounts in the

statements financial

prepared in statements
accordance with prepared in Differences
Law No. 6762 and  accordance with recognized in
31 December 2023 other legislation TAS/TFRS refained earnings
Adjustments to share capital 9,023,848,047 8,628.197,049 395,650,998
Restricted reserves appropriated from profit 1,444.973,603 1,304,111,526 140,862,167
Total 10,468,821,740 9,932,308,575 536,513,165

The impact of "Retained Eamings or Losses" in the balance sheet prepared in accordance with IFRS/TFRS under
the scope of initial adoption of inflation accounting, as of 1 January 2022, is TL 2,732,116,124 and the indexed
value of this amount as of 31 December 2023, is TL 3,664,730,409.

Revenue

Revenue for period year ended on 1 January- 31 December is as follows:

1 January- 1 January-

31 Becember 2023 31 December 2022

Domestic sales 27,282,509,183 78,583,615,553
Foreign saies 7,889,748,249 8,518,055,923
Net sales income 35,172,257,432 87,101,671,476
Cost of sales (-} {27,956,855,325) (76,510,664,856)
Total 7,215,402,107 10,591,006,620
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20 Revenue {continued)
The details of the Group's sales income and gross profit are as follows:
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Sales income — Amount
Electricity 35,172,196,381 87,101,355,726
Other 61,051 315,750
Total 35,172,257,432 87,101,671.476
Gross profit
Electricity 7,215,371.831 10,590,949,041
Other 30,276 57,579
Total 7,215,402,107 10,591,006,620
21 General administrative expenses, sales, marketing and distribution expenses

General administrative expenses, sales, marketing and distribution expenses for the years ended 1 January - 31

December are as follows:

1 January-
31 December 2023

1 January-
31 December 2022

General administrative expenses 786,067,361 568,837,532
Sales, marketing and distribution expenses 23,444,369 43,354,126
Total 809,511,730 612,191,658

Administrative expenses for the years ended 1 January - 31 December are as follows:
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Personnei expenses 226,393,450 185,614,414
Consultancy and legal expenses 136,159,818 76,327,791
Holding expense share 133,569,145 68,361,781
Travelling, vehicle and transportation expenses 103,789,437 114,328,411
Advertising expenses 81,655,057 29,501,294
Litigation provision expenses {Note 15} 14,602,751 22,153,081
License and enterprise software expenses 8,292,785 7,841,854
Insurance expenses 7.499,167 10,448,246
Representation and entertainment expenses 4,114,576 3151477
Depreciation expenses 1,078,581 1,183,695
Other 68,912,594 49 925 488
Total 786,067,361 568,837,532
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General administrative expenses, sales, marketing and distribution expenses (continued)

Sales, marketing and distribution expenses for the years ended 1 January - 31 December are as follows:

1 January - 1 January —
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Freight and export expenses 20,430,066 35,113,176
Advertising expenses 2,317,703 2,966,827
Other 096,600 5,274,123
Total 23,444,369 43,354,126
Other income and expenses from operating activities
Other income from operating activities for the years ended 1 January ~ 31 December is as follows:
1 January- 1 January-
Other income from operating activities 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Foreign exchange income from commercial
monetary transactions 300,221,988 555,817,131
Provisions for cancelled fawsuits (Note 15) 1,121,436 5,145,058
Other 173,896,465 183,937,165
Total 475,239,889 744,899,354

Other expenses and losses from operating activities for the years ended [ January - 31 December are as follows:

1 January- 1 January-
Other expenses from operating activities 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Donations and aids 20,136,988 10,184,907
Foreign exchange expenses from
commercial monetary transactions 12,143,041 191,207,865
Other 69,690,422 84,949 835
Total 101,970,451 286,342,547
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23 Income and expenses from investing activities

Income from investment activities for the years ended 1 January — 31 December is as follows:

1 January- 1 January-
Income from investing activities 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Profit on sale of fixed assets 50,870,015 -
[nterest income from time deposits 26,228,365 49,109,942
Income from subsidiary shares - 141,070
Total 77,098,380 49,251,012

Expense trom investment activities for the years ended 1 January ~ 31 December is as foilows:

1 January- 1 January-
Expense from investing activities 31 Decemiber 2023 31 December 2022
Impairment loss on fixed assets (Note 12) 36,030,963 2.405,874,001
Loss on sale of fixed assets 82,418,700 -
Total 118,449,663 2,405,874,001

24 Expenses by nature

Expenses classified on the basis of type for the years ended 1 January - 31 December are as follows:

1 January - I January -
Depreciation and amortization expenses 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Cost of sales 1,545,868,330 2,394 066,310
General administrative expenses 1,078,581 1,183,695
Total 1,546,946,911 2,395,250,005

1 January - 1 January -
Personnel expenses 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Cost of sales 646,465,521 430,624,829
General administrative expenses 226,393,450 185,014,414
Total 872,858,971 616,239,243
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24 Expenses by nature (continued)
Fees for Services Received from Independent Audit Firms
Based on the Board Decision of the Public Oversight, Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority "POA"

published in the Official Gazette, the fees related to the services that the Group received from the independent
auditor/independent audit firm as of the reporting period are as follows:

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Audit fees 1AF Other IAF IAF Other IAF
Independent audit service fee 5.045475 3,497271 3,599,108 3,498,698
Tax consulting services fee - 2,970,906 - 1,125,752
Other assurance services fee 159,097 - 101,833 -
Fees for non-audit services - - - -
Total 5,204,572 6,468,237 1,700,941 4,624,450
25 Finance income
Finance income for the years ended 1 January — 31 December is as follows:
1 January- 1 January —

26

Finance income

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Foreign exchange income (*)
Interest and delay income
Derivative transaction income

3.108,728,335
1,027,491,636
75,849,994

1,769,570,533
842,761,119
188,755,668

Total

4,212,069,965

2,801,087,320

(*) Foreign exchange gains and expenses are presented on a company basis in subsidiaries which are connected to

consolidation.

Finance expenses

Finance expenses for the years ended 1 January - 31 December are as follows:

Finance expenses

1 January-
31 December 2023

1 January-
31 December 2022

Interest and delay interest expenses

1,502,466,933

1,737,880,617

Foreign curency difference expense (%) 901,171,324 149,886,308
Derivative transaction expenses 33,825,655 80,711,352
Other 92,881,651 123,480,829
Total 2,530,345,563 2,091,959,106

(*} Foreign exchange gains and expenses ave presented on a company basis in subsidiaries which are connected to

consolidation.
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Faxation
Turkey
Corporate tax

The Group is subject to corporate tax valid in Turkey. Necessary provisions have been made in the accompanying
financial statements for the estimated tax liabilities of the Group regarding the current period operating results. In
Turkey, the tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiaries to file a consolidated tax return.
Therefore, provision for taxes shown in the consolidated financial statements reflects the total amount of taxes
catculated on each entity that are included in the consolidation.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the statutory accounting profit by
adding back non-deductible expenses, and by deducting dividends received from resident companies, other exempt
income and other incentives (prior year’s losses if any and investment incentives used if preferred) utilized.

The effective tax rate in 2023 is 25% (2022: 23%).

15 July 2023, amendment to the Corporate Tax Law has abolished the 50% exemption on real estate capital gains.
However, for properties acquired before the date of the amendment, this exemption will continue to be applied at
a rate of 25%.

Under the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward to be offset against future taxable income for
up to five years. However, tax losses cannot be carried back.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a tinal and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file their tax
returns within four months following the close of the accounting vear to which they relate. Tax returns are open
for five years from the beginning of the year that foliows the date of filing during which time the tax authorities
have the right to audit tax returns, and the related accounting records on which they are based, and may issue
reassessments based on their findings.

According to Temporary Article 33 added to the Tax Procedure Law by the Law Amending the Tax Procedure
Law and Corporate Tax Law published in the Official Gazette numbered 7352 on 29 January 2022, the financial
statements dated 31 December 2023, prepared in accordance with the tax legistation have been adjusted for
inflation. This application has been applied to the financial statements dated 31 December 2023, The difference in
profit/toss arising from the inflation adjustment will be shown in the retained earnings account of previous years
and will not be subject to taxation.

Income tax withholding

There is a withholding tax obligation on dividend distributions, and this withholding obligation is accrued in the
period when the dividend payment is made. A business or a corporate taxpayer who eams revenue through
permanent representative in Turkey and dividend payments to non-resident institutions other than those made in
Turkey are subject to withholding at the rate of 10%. In the application of the withholding rates regarding the
dividend distributions made to non-resident companies and real persons, the withholding rates included in the
related Double Taxation Agreements are also taken into consideration. AHocation of prior years' profits to the
capital is not considered as profit distribution, therefore it is not subject to withholding tax.
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Taxation (continued)

Transfer pricing regulations

" In Turkey, the transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax Law with the

heading of “disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing”. The General Communiqué on disguised profit
distribution via Transfer Pricing, dated 18 November 2007 sets details about implementation.

If a tax payer enters into transactions regarding sale or purchase of goods and services with related parties, where
the prices are not set in accordance with arm's length principle, then related profits are considered to be distributed
in a disguised manner through transfer pricing. Such disguised profit distributions through transfer pricing are not
accepted as tax deductible for corporate income tax purposes.

Tax applications for foreign subsidiaries of the Group

Turkish Republic of Northern Cyprus (“TRNC™)

The applicable corporate tax rate in TRNC is 23.5% (31 December 2022: 23,5%),
Republic of Ghana

The applicable corporate tax rate in Republic of Ghana is 25% (31 December 2022: 25%).
Nethertands

Corporate income tax is levied at the rate of 209 (31 December 2022: 20%) on the worldwide income of resident
companies, which is determined by modifying accounting income for certain exclusions and allowances for tax
purposes for the yvear 2023, A unilateral decree for the avoidance of double taxation provides relief for resident
companies from Dutch tax on income, such as foreign business profits derived through a permanent establishment
abroad, if no tax treaty applies. There is an additional dividend tax of 3% computed only on the amounts of dividend
distribution at the time of such payments.

Under Dutch tax legislation, tax losses can be carried forward to be offset against fufure taxable income for up to
nine years. Financial losses can be offset against retained eamings for up to one year. Entities must file their tax
returns within six months following the close of the tax year to which they relate, unless the company applies for
an extension {normally an additional nine months). Tax inspection authorities, starting from the beginning of the
year following the submission of the tax refurn, can examine the previous year's tax returns and the accounting
records that are the basis for them and make a reassessment as a result of their findings for five years.

Muaurifius

There is no corporate tax in Mauritius {31 December 2022: None).
Republic of Mali

The applicable corporate tax rate in Mali is 35% (31 December 2022: 35%).
Madagascar

The applicable corporate tax rate in Madagascar is 20% (31 December 2022: 20%).
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Taxation fcontinued)
Tax applications for foreign subsidiaries of the Group (continued)
zbekistan

Corporate income tax is tevied at the rate of 15% (31 December 2022: 15%) on the worldwide income of resident
companies, which is determined by medifying accounting income for certain exclusions and allowances for tax
purposes for the year 2023, A unilateral decree for the avoidance of double taxation provides relief for resident
companies from Duich tax on income, such as foreign business profits derived through a permanent establishment
abroad, it no tax treaty appties. There is an additional dividend tax of 10% computed only on the amounts of
dividend distribution at the time of such payments.

Under the Uzbekistan taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward to be offset against future taxable income
for limitlessly, Entities must file their tax returns within two months following the close of the tax year to which
they relate, unless the company applies for an extension (normally an additional nine months). Tax inspection
authoritics, starting from the beginning of the year following the submission of the tax return, can examine the
previous year's tax returns and the accounting records that are the basis for them and make a reassessment as a
result of their findings.

Congo
The applicable corporate tax rate in Congo is 30% (31 December 2022: 30%).
As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, tax liability details are as follows:

31 December 2023

31 December 20322

Corporate tax payable [,957,986,664 1.942,746,047
Prepaid corporate tax {618,545,804) (1,243,467,305)
Total tax liability 1,339,440,860 699,278,242

The tax expense consists of the following:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Current tax expense

(1,957,986,664)

(1,942,746,047)

Deferred tax income related to the origination and

reversal of temporary differences 1,429,945 913 389,969,990
Additional tax related o article 10 of law no. 7440 (92,601,652) -
Foreign exchange transiation difference and inflation

effect {415,018,897) (327,447,976)
Total tax expense (1,035,661,300) (1,880,224,033)

As of 31 December 2023, since the taxes payable amounting to TL 1,957,986.,664 (31 December 2022: TL
1,942,746,047) are related to the tax assets and liabilities of the different subsidiaries within the scope of
consolidation, prepaid taxes related to current period tax amounting to TL 23,556,094 (31 December 2022: TL
244,375,531} have not been offset,
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Taxation {continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax is calculated over the temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the values used in the tax base, except for the goodwill not subject to tax deduction
and the differences in the assets and liabilities that are recognized for the first time and are not subject to accounting
and tax.

As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities consist of the

foillowing:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Asset/ Asset /
(Liability) (Liahility)

Net difference between carrying values of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets and tax base (934,205,577) (2,097,442,758)
Unused carryforward tax losses 108,189,338 -
Adjustments according to TFRS 9 140,880,247 66,956,112
Other 77,632,075 (36,368,575)
(607,503,917) (2,066,855,221)
Deferred tax asset 428,705,046 89,049,060
Deferred tax liabilities (1,036,208,963) (2,155,904,281)
Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities) (607,503,917) (2,006,855,221)

The movement of deferred tax during 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

Foreign Recogunized in
cHrrency other
translation  Recognized in - comprehensive
I January 2023 differences  profit or loss income 31 December 2023
Total deferred tax
asset/(liahilities) (2,066,855,221) 160,707,315 1429945913 {13£,301,924) {607,503,917)
Foreign Recognized in
cirrency other
translation  Recognized in  comprehensive
I January 2022 differences  profit or loss income 31 December 2022
Total deferred tax
asset/(tiabilities) (1,813,127,915) 99,020,547 389,969,990 {742,717,843)  (2,066,855,221)
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27 Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities (confinued)

The tax provision reported for the years ended 31 December is different from the amount calculated using the
statutory tax rate on profit before tax. The relevant reconciliation breakdown is as follows:

1 January- I January-

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Amount Amount

Profit before tax 7,141,504 ,849 §,156,853,219

Income tax rate 25% 23%

Tax calcutated with the Company's legal tax rate {1,783,376,212) {1,876,076,240)

Non-deductible expenses (36,508,272 {4,138.,484)

Exemptions and deductions 149,685,556 43 185,199

Tax-exempt income 180,588,795 124,024,899
Unrecognized unused tax losses

not recognized as deferred tax assets (65,900,182) (41,893,068)

Inflation accounting effect and other, net 521,849,015 (125,326,339

Tax expense (1,035,661,300) (1,880,224,033)

28 Earning per share

Earnings per share calculations are made by dividing the net profit for the period in the profit or loss statement
given in this report by the weighted average number of shares issued.

1 fanuary- I Janunary-

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Profit for the period attributable to equity holders 5,496,564,945 5,581,565,888
Weighted average number of common shares issued 1,226,338.236 [,226,338,236
Profit per share with nominal value of TL 1 4.48 4.55
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Financial instruments

The Group risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

s (Credit risk
¢ Liquidity risk
+  Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included in Note 30 and 31.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishinent and oversight of the Group’s
risk management framework. The Beard of Directors has established an Early Detection of Risk Committee
responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies.

The risk management policies of the Group are determined in order to identify and analyze the risks to be
encountered, to determine the appropriate risk limits and to establish their controls, and to observe the risks and
the dependency of the risks to the limits. Risk management policies and systems are regularly reviewed to reflect
changes in the Group's activities and market conditions. The Group aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and responsibilities through training and
management standards and procedures.

Aksa Energy Audit Committee audits the management in terms of compliance with the risk management policies
and procedures of the Group and provides support during the fulfillment of the risk management framework
depending on the risks exposed by the Group. The internal audit department makes regular and specific evaluations
of risk management policies and procedures and reports the results to the Audit Committee,

Credit risk

The Group closely menitors customer credit risks in order to eliminate possible risks that may arise in the collection
of trade receivables. Certain credit control procedures, credit rating system and internal control policies are used
in the management of credit risk. The Group management covers these risks by limiting the average risk for the
counterparty in each agreement and by obtaining guarantees if necessary. Foreign customer credit risks are related
to public institutions and organizations with low collection risk, and guarantees are received for these customer
credit risks.

Credit risk s the risk of financial loss to the other party as a result of one of the parties in a mutual relationship not
fulfitling its obligations regarding a financial instrument.

The Group financial instruments also bears the risk of failure of the counterparty to fulfill the requirements of the
agreement. The collection risk of the Group mainly arises from its trade receivables. Trade receivables are
evaluated by taking into account the Group's policies and procedures, and accordingly, they are presented as net in
the consolidated statement of financial position after making provision for doubtful receivables.

A significant proportion of the Group's trade receivables are receivables from TEIAS, and similarly, it has
receivables arising from agreements with the governments or ministries of the countries in its operations in foreign
countries. The Group takes part in a sector with low collection risk,

The Group manages the liquidity risk by maintaining the continuation of sufficient funds by regularly monitoring
the cash flows and matching the maturities of financial assets and liabilities.
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Financial instruments (confinued)
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk s the possibility of the Group not meeting its net funding liabilities. Occurrence of events that cause
a decrease in fund resources such as deterioration in the markets or a decrease in credit score, cause liquidity risk.
The Group management manages the liquidity risk by distributing the fund resources and keeping sufficient cash
and similar resources to fulfill its current and possible liabilities.

The Group uses activity-based costing in costing its products and services, which helps to monitor cash flow needs
and makes effective cash return on investments. The Group generally ensures that it has sufficient cash to cover
financial and operational expenses, including the fulfillment of financial liabilities, excluding the potential impact
of unreasonably foreseeable events such as natural disasters.

Market risk

Market risk is the changes that will occur in interest rates, exchange rates or the value of securities and other
financial agrcements and will affect the Group negatively. The main importtant risks for the Group are changes in
currency and interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises from the Group's labilities in USD and EUR and the changes in the value of Turkish
Lira against USD and EUR.

The Group also has a foreign currency risk arising from its transactions. These risks arise from the Group's purchase
and sale of goods in a currency other than the functional currency and using bank loans in foreign currency.

The Group aims to balance the exchange rate risk against foreign cumrency through derivative financial contracts.

The basis of the sensitivity analysis made in order to measure the currency risk is to make the total currency
statement throughout the Group. Total foreign currency position includes all short-term and long-term foreign
currency-based purchase and sale contracts and all assets and Habilities,

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk due to various income and expense items in foreign curvencies and
foreign currency payables, receivables and financial borrowings arising from these,

Inferest rate risk

Within the scope of fund management, sensitivity analysis is performed in measuring the interest risk of interest
sensitive assets in the portfolio. By determining the average maturity and interest rate of interest-sensitive assets,
the sensitivity to changes in market interest rates is calculated, and the interest risk arising from the securities
portfolio created within the scope of fund management by monitoring the markets is managed within the framework
of the decisions taken to move, increase or decrease the existing securities portfolio in accordance with market
interest rates expectations.

Capital management

The main purpose of the capital management of the Company is to provide a strong capital ratio in order 1o continue
the operations of the Company and to increase the value it provides to the Company partners.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes the necessary arrangements according to the market
competition conditions, economic conjuncture and growth strategy. In order to strengthen and regulate the capital
structure, shareholders can make direct cash payments according to their working capital needs.

During the period, there has been no change in the Group's perspective on capital management.
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Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments

Credit risk

Carrying value of financial assets shows the maximum credit risk of the Group. The table below shows the details
of the values exposed to maximum credit risk as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022:

Receivables

31 December 2023

Trade r

ceivables

Other receivables

Related
Parties

Other

Related

Parties Other

Depasits
at banks

Other (%)

Maximuen credit sisk exposed as of
the reporting date (A+B+C+D+EF}

2,549 072,344

10,9%1,073,063

: 53 430 041

786,251,820

876,290,463

A. Carrying amount of fnancial
assets not overdue or nol impaired

2,549,023 344

7.689,358.250

- 10,354,274

786,251 820

876,290,463

B. Carrying amount of financial assets
with rediscussed conditions that are
considered overdue or impaired it not

rediscussed

. Carrying amount of financial assets
overdue but not impaired

3,291,714,813

- 53134767

D, Catrying amount of assets
impaired

- Overdue {zress book value)

569,735,029

6,782,532

- Impairment (-}

(569,733,029)

{6,782,532)

E. Off balance sheet items with credit

risk

{*) Other balance consists of financial investments.

Receivables

31 December 2022

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Related
Parties

Other

Related

Partics QOther

Deposits
at hanks

Other ()

Maximum credit risk exposed as of
the reporting date (A+B+C+D+E)

4,0§1,449.5673

11,176,109,200

- 118,190,223

1,540,216,472

304,880,411

A. Carrying amount of financial assets
not everdue or not impaired

4,011,449,673

8,605,466,336

- 02,142,609

1,540,216,472

504,880,411

B. Carrying amount of tinancial assets
with rediscussed conditions that are
consudered pverdue or impaired if sot
rediscussed

C. Carrying amount of financial assets
overdue but not impaired

2,570,642 644

- 36,047,014

D. Carrying amount of assets

impaired

~ Overdue (gross book value)

289,260,363

9,899,782

- Impairment ()

(189,260,363)

(6,899,782)

E. Off balance sheet items with credit

risk
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Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

Liguidity risk

The maturities of the financial liabilities determined according to the payment schedule of the Group, including
the estimated interest payments as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, are as foilows:

Contractual cash 3 months or More than
Carrying flows fess 3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years
31 December 2023 amount (=IIHHEHY) [U)] L] [113)] [14%)
Non-derivative financial
tiabilities 13,440,098,814 15,801,6290,745 | 2,54%,798.112 6,112,279,997 6,381,092,342 758,959,274
Financial liahilities 13,248 686,592 15389267721 | 2529003095 6,064,483 603 6,216,201,128 579,577,893
Leases 191,412,222 412,362,029 20,295,037 47,794 392 164,891,214 179,381,38}
Berivative tinancial
assels, net (25,969,464) (34,411,378) (17,314,880 {11,336,066) (5,748,430) -
Cash inflows - 1,704,749 837,784 362,583 234,382 -
Cash outflows - (36,116,127) {18,172,666) (11,918 64% {6,024.812) -
Contractual cash 3 months or Maore than
Carrying flows fess 3-12 months 1-5 vears 5 years
Exgpected maturity amount (=1+11+H 1V [13] {an (1D (IV)
Non-derivative financial
liabilities 3,567,705,524 3,567,705,524 | 3,245,715,250 321,994,274 - -
Trade payables to related
parties 272,492,454 272492 454 272,492 454 - - -
Trade payables e third
parties 3,067,869,733 1.067.869,733 1 2,745.879.461 321,996,274 - -
Other payables to related
parties 12,534 12,534 12,534 - - -
Other payables to third
parties 227,330,801 227,330,801 227,330,801 - - -
Contractual cash 3 maonths or More than
Carrying flows fess 3-12 months 1-5 years S vears
31 December 2022 amount {=I+1HHHTV) {H (Ih [{1]3) {1V}
Non-derivative financial
liahitities 14,184,177,326 16,357,336,774 | 3,441,668,841 4,777,498,348 7816,624,914 JLS4L6T1
Finanrgial liahilities 14,037,233,732 15,720944 351 { 1.389,863,934 4,713,402,659 7,026,077 758 -
Leases 146,943,594 627,392,423 51,804,907 64,093 689 199947, 156 311,544,071
Derivative financial
assels, net (37,203,362) (44,748,161} (14,856,173) (11,884,939 {18,006,989) -
Cash inflows - 2,216,833 735,979 388,783 892,071 -
Cash outflows - (46,904,934} (13,592,152 (12.473,720y {18,899 060} -
Contractual cash 3 months or Meore than
Carrying Aews less 3-12 months 1-5 vears S years
Expected maturity amount EHIHTEY) 18] (1) (I11) {av)
Non-derivative financial
liabilities 3,764,884,263 3,764.884,263 | 3,508.608,%16 256,275,347 - -
Trade payables 1o related
parlies 251,001,557 251,661,557 231,661,337 - - -
Teade payables 1o third .
parties 3,259, 438,143 3,259,438,145 | 3,003,162,798 256273347 - -

Other payables {o related

parties 36,248 36,248 36.248 - - -
Otlser payables to third
parties 233,748,313 233,748,313 253,748,313 - - -
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Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

As of 31 December 2023, the Group's foreign currency position arises from foreign currency-based assets and
liabilities presented in the table below, Since the reporting currency is TL, the currency risk table shows the foreign
currency position of companies whose functional currency is TL. Companies whose functional currency is foreign
currency stated in section 2 article [.d. are not presented in the foreign currency risk table.

FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITION

31 December 2023

TL Eguivalent | US Daollar EURO GRP CHF Other
1. Trade receivables 175382435800 | 4435 551917 | 137,109,211 - 220 -
2a. Monetary financial assets {cash, including bank
accounts) 886,518,486 241,833 | 26936,646 3,854 79] 189,069
2b. Non-monetary financial assets 843,786 1,000 23,000 - - -
3. Other 378,772,654 18,£63,542 1,352,945 - - -
4. Current assefs {1+2+3) 19,648.570,832 | 463,958,292 | 165,443 804 3,854 199 189,069
5. Trade receivables - - - - - -
6a, Monetary finuncial assets b b - - - -
6b. Non-monetary financial assets - - - - - -
7. Other - - - - - -
8. Non-current assets (5+6+7) - - " . . .
9. Total assets (4+8) 19,048,570,832 | 463,958,292 | 165,443,804 3,854 299 1 189,069
10. Trade payables 8,780.430,033 = 285006760 | 11,254,329 -1 679,124 -
11. Financial liabilities 4,607,268,033 | 149477900 | 6,355,018 - - -
i2a. Other monetary liabifities - . - - - -
i 2h, Chiher non-monetary liabifities - - - - - -
13. Current linbilities (10+11+12) 13,387,798,088 | 434,484,660 | 17,609,347 -1 679,124 -
4. Trade payables - - - - - -
[3. Financial Habilities 1,886,180.888 1 38458,703 1 23148438 - . -
l6a. Other monetary liabilities - - - - - -
16h. Osher nen-monetary fiabilities - - - - - -
17, Non-current liabilities (14+15+16) 1,886,189,888 | 38,458,703 | 23,148,438 - - -
18. Total liabilities (13+17) 15,273,987.976 | 472,943,363 | 40,757,785 -1 679,124 -
19, Net asset/ (lability) position of off-statement
derivative instruments {19a-1%b) 1,115,492,740 § 37,892,695 - - - -
20. Net fereign currency asset! {liability) pesition
(9-18+1%) 4,890,075,596 | 28,907,624 | 124,686,019 3,854 { (678,815) 189,069
1%, Monetary items net foreign currency asset /
(liability) position (IFRS 7.B23) (=1+2a+5+6a-10-
11-12a-14-15-16a) 3,194,966,416 | (27,149,613 | 123,308,074 3,854 | (678,825)1 189,069
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Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Fareign currency rvisk (continued)

As of 31 December 2022, the Group's foreign currency position arises from foreign currency-based assets and
liabilities presented in the table below. Since the reporting currency is TL, the currency risk table shows the foreign
currency position of companies whose functional currency is TL. Companies whose functional currency is foreign
currency stated in section 2 article 1.d. are not presented in the foreign currency risk table.

FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITION

31 Decemhber 2022

TL Equivaient | US Dollar LEURO GRP CHF
1. Trade receivables 12,361,433,024 | 3339473967 63,102,554 1,937 -
2a. Monetary financial assets (cash, including bank accounts) 732,718,883 15,402,707 7,856,817 2,719 73
2b. Non-menetary financial assets 831,978 1,648 25,000 - -
3. Other 65,533,637 736,633 1,304,177 - -
4, Current assets (1+2-+3) 13,160,537,524 | 350,088,404 | 72288548 4,656 73
3. Trade receivables - - - -
6a. Monctary financia assets - - - - -
6b. Non-monetary financial assets - - - “
7. Gther - - - - -
8. Non-current assets (S+0+7) - - - - -
9. Total assets (4+8) 13,160,537,524 | 350,088,404 | 72,288,548 4,656 73
0. Trade payables 7,491,764.336 1 226,354,135 14,667,035 18,139 956,392
[1. Financial liabilities 2,363,947,323 76,793,561 - - -
12a. Other monetary liabilities - - - - -
12b. Other non-monetary liabilities - . - - -
13, Current liabilities (10+11+12) 9,857,711,659 | 303,147,696} 14,667,035 118,139 956,392
14. Trade payables - - - - -
15. Financial liabilities 1,850,956,062 1 60,078,052 . . .
162, Other raonetary liahilities - - - - -
16b. Other nor-monetary liabilities - - - -
17, Non-current liabilities (14+15+16) 1,850,956.062 60,078,052 - - -
18, Total liabilifies {13+17) 11, 708,667,721 @ 303,225 7481 14,667,035 118,139 956,392
19. Net asset/ (liability) position of off-statement derivative
instruments (19a-19b) 1,945.834,522 61,157,603 - - -
20. Net foreign currency asset/ (liability) position (9-18+19) 3,397,704.325 50,020,259 | ST.621.513 | (113,483} (956,319
21. Monetary items net foreign currency asset / {liability)
position (1FRS 7.1823) {=1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a) 1,385,484,188 | (13,875,645) 56,292,336 | (113,483} (956,319}
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Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)
Market risk fcontinued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's currency risk generally consists of changes in the value of TL against EUR and USD. The basis of
the sensitivity analysis made to measure the currency risk is to make the total currency statement throughout the
entity. Total foreign currency position includes all short-term and long-term purchase contracts and all assets and
liabilities based on foreign currency. The analysis does not include net foreign currency investments.

The Group realizes its medium and long-term loans in the currency of the project revenue it generates. For short-
tenn loans, borrowings are made in TL, EUR and USD balanced under the pool/poitfolio model.

Sensitivity analysis
31 December 2023

Profit/Loss Equity
The appreciation of |The depeeciation of | The appreciation of | The depreciation of
foreign currency foreizn currency foreizn currency foreign currency
20% appreciation/depreciation of TL against the USD
1 - UST net asset / Habilizy (139,847,132} 15% 847,152 (159,847,152) 159,847,152
2- Portion secared from USD nisk (4} 221098548 (223,098 548) 223,098,548 {223,098,548)
3- USD net effect {1 +2} 63,251,396 {63,251,396) 63,251,396 (63,251,396)
20% appreciation/depreciation of EUR against TL
4 - EUR net asset / lability 803,324,978 (803,324,978) 803,314.978 (803,324,978)
5 - Portion secured from EUR risk (-} - - - -
G- USD net effect (4 +5) 803,324,978 (803,324,978) 803,324,978 {803,324,578)
%20 appreciation / depreciation of TL against other curtency
7- Other currency net asset / Hability (4,484,343) 4,484,543 (4,484,343) 4,484,543
8- Portion secured from other currency risk (-) - . - -
9- Other currency net effect (7+8) (4,484,543) 4,484,543 (4,484, 543) 4,484,543
Total {3+6+9} 862,091,831 (#62,091.831) 862,091,831 (862,091,831)

Sensitivity analysis
31 December 2022

Profit/Loss Equity
The appreciation of {The deprecistion of | The appreciation of § The depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency
20% appreciation/depreciation of TL, apainst the USD
i - USD net asset / liability (83,499,473 85,499,473 (85,499,473) 85499473
2- Portion secured from USD risk {-) 389,166,904 {389,1606,904) 389,166,904 {389,166,904)
3- USD net effect (1 +2) 303,667,431 (303,667,431) 303,667,431 (303,667A431)
20% appreciation/depreciation of EUR against TL
4 - EUR net asset / liahiliyy 369,803,880 {369,803 8&() 369,803,880 {369,803 880)
3 - Portion secured from EUR risk (-} - - - -
G- USD net effect (4 +5) 369,803,880 (369,803,880 369,803,880 {369,803 880)
%420 appreciation { depreciation of TL against other currency
7- Other currency net asset / liability (7,207,570 7,207,570 (7,207,570} 7,207,570
8- Pertion secured from other currency risk {-) . . R .
9- Other currency net effect (7+8) {7,267,570) 7,207,570 (7,207,570 7,207,570
Total (3+6+%) 666,263,741 (666,263.741) 666,163,741 {666,263,741)
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Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest vate visk

Profile

The interest structure of the Group's financial items with an interest component at the reporting date is as follows:

Interest rate position

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 934 312 062 1,016,086,655
Financial liabilities {Note 8) 8,837,181,302 10,704,854,.267
Financial lease (Note 8) 191,412,222 146,943,594
Floating rafe instruments
Financial liabilities {Note 8) 4,411,505,290 3,332,379.465

Fair value risk of financial instruments with fixed interest:

The Group does not have financial assets and fiabilities with fixed interest fair value difference reflected on profit
or loss and hedging derivatives (forward interest ratc swaps) registered under the accounting model for hedging
purposes of fair value risk. Therefore, as of the reporting period, changes in interest rates will not atfect profit or
loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for financial instruments with floating interest;

As of 31 December 2023 how much a 100 basis point change in interest rates will increase (decrease} equity and
profit or loss before tax is presented below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, especially foreign
exchange rates, remain constant. This analysis was conducted in the same way as of 31 December 2022,

Profit or loss Equity

1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
31 December 2023
Floating rate instruments (75,361,240} 22,673,908 (75,361,240) 22,673 908
Cash flow sensitivity {net) (52,687,332} (52,687,332}
31 December 2022
Floating rate instruments (57.597,858) 46,829,344 (57,597.858) 46,829 344
Cash flow sensitivity (net} (10,768,514) (10,768,514)
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Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

Market risk fcontimied)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Capital risk management

While managing the capital, the Group's goals are to maintain the Group's continuity of activity in order to maintain
the most appropriate capital structure in order to provide return to its partners, benefit to other sharcholders and to
reduce the cost of capital,

The Group menitors capital using the net financial debt/equity ratio. Net financial debt is calculated by deducting
cash and cash equivalents from the total financial debt amount.

Net debt/invested capital ratios as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Total financial liabilities 13,440,098,814 14,184,177,326
Cash and banks (1,671,172,797) (2,049,339,495)
Net financial debt 11,768,926,017 12,134,837,831
Equity 34,635,641,057 32,414,209,621
Net financial debt / equity ratio 34% 37%

Financial instruments (fair value disclosures and explanation on hedge accounting)
Fair value

Carrying values and fair values of assets and Habilities as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are shown
in the table below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Amortized Amortized
Nuote Book value value (%) Book value value (*}
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 794,882,334 794,882,334 1,544,463 434 1,544,463.434
Financial investments 7 879,385,933 879,385,931 507,973,706 507.973.706
Trade receivables 5 13,530,095,407 13,530,095,407 15,187,558,873 15,187.558.873
Othier receivables 9 55,167,044 55,107,644 94,871,019 94,871 019
Derivative instruments 7 25,969 464 25,969,464 37,203,362 37,203,362
Financial Habilities
Financial liabilities 8 132,248,686,592 13,248,686,592 14,037,233,732 14,037,233,732
Financial leases 8 191,412,222 191,412,222 146,943,594 146,943,504
Trade payables i 3.340.362,189 3.340,362,189 3,511,099,702 3,511.099.762
Other liabilities 9 1,479,827,213 1,479.827.213 £,493,115.933 1,493,115,933

{(*} The Group management believes that the book values of financial instruments reflect their fair values.
Derivative instruments are shown at fair value.
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Financial instruments (fair value disclosures and explanation on hedge accounting) (continued)
Fair value {continued)

Fair value refers to the price of a financial instrument subject to purchase and sale between willing parties in a
current transaction, except in cases such as a forced sale or liquidation. Quoted market price, if any, is the value
that best reflects the fair value of a financial instrument.

Foreign currency based financial receivables and payables are evaluated at the exchange rates valid on the date of
the financial statement.

The following methods and assumptions have been used in estimating the fair values of the Group's financial
instruments:

Financial Assets - The fair values of some financial assets include their cost values, cash and cash eguivalents in
the financial statements, interest accruals on them and other short-term financial assets, and due to their short-term
nature, their fair values are considered to approximate their carrying values. The values of trade receivables carried,
after deducting the provision for doubtful receivables, is considered to approximate their fair values.

Financial Liabilities - Due to the short-tenm nature of trade payables and other monetary liabilities, it is considered
that their fair values approximate their carrying values. Fixed interest bank loans are expressed with discounted
cost and transaction costs are added to the initial carrying values of the loans. Since the interest rates on floating
rate loans are updated taking into account the changing market conditions, it is considered that the fair values of
the loans represent their carrying value. Due to the shori-term nature of trade payables, it is estimated that their
fair values approximate their carrying values.

The Group classifies fair value measurements according to the source of the inputs of each financial instrument
class, using a three-level hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Valuation techniques using market prices traded in the active market
Level 2: Other valuation techniques involving direct or indirect observable input
Level 3: Valuation techniques that do not contain observable market inputs

Financial instruments at fair value
The table below presents the financial instruments measured with their fair value according to their fair value
tevels and their values in the statement of financial position.

31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Financial assets held for risk management and

trading - 25,969,464 - 25,969,464
- 25,969,464 - 25,969,464

Financial liabilities
Derivative assets held for risk management and

trading . - - -
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Financial instruments (fair value disclosures and explanation on hedge accounting) (continued)

Fair value {continued)

31 December 2022
Financial assets

Derivative asseis held for risk management and

trading

Financial investiments

Financial Habilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- 37.203,362 - 37,203,362
- 504,878,236 - 304,878,236
- 541,081,598 - 542,081,598

Derivative assets held for risk management and

trading

Noftes on the statement of cash flows

Changes in the Group's liabilities resulting from financing activities between
1 January - 31 December 2022 are as follows:

1 January - 31 December 2023 and

Other non- Inflation effect and
Cash Cash cash foreign exchange
1 January 2023 inflows outflows  movements translation difference 31 December 2023
Financial borrowings  [4,184,177,326  8.037,022,133  (7,345004,401) 667,140,694 (2,103,146,938) 13,440,008.814
Total financtal
iabilities 14,184,177,326  8,037,022,133  (7,345,094,401) 667,140,694 (2,103,146,938)  13,440,008.814
Gther non Enflation effect and
Cash Cash cash foreign exchange
1 January 2022 inflows outflows movements translation difference 31 December 2022
Financial borrowings 13,327.365,021 9223 B59.015  (4,323.606,945) 649,81 1,04] (6,694.960,806} i4,184,177,326
Total financial
fiabilities 15,327,165,02F  9,225.855.015  (4,323,696,945) 649,811,041 (6,694,960,806) 14,184,177,326

It represents the change in cash amounts related to the lines “Cash Inflows from Borrowing” and “Cash Outtlows
from Debt Payments” within the financing activities in the cash flow statement.
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Events after the reporting period

Aksa Enerji Uretim A.S."s subsidiary Aksa Global Investments B.V s affiliated company NDAR Energies SA will
iniiate investments for the financing, establishment, operation, and ownership of a natural gas combined cycle
power plant with an instalied capacity of 255 MW in Saint Louis City, Senegal. The power plant is planned to
commence commercial operation within the year 2026.

As part of the procurement of equipment necessary for the installation of a 430 MW natural gas combined cycle
power plant in Talimercan, Uzbekistan, it has been decided to utilize our existing portfolio, the Sanlurfa Natural
Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant with an installed capacity of 147 MW, in the Talimercan investment, In this
context, the license cancellation application submitted to the EPDK and TEIAS has been approved by the EPPK
board as of February 25, 2024, and the production license numbered E{}/3210-3/1940 has expired.
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